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BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Governor Doug Burgum
The Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota
Bismarck, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, a department of the State of North Dakota, as of and for
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

-1- Make Every Day Count |



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the business-type activities of the North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency, as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in financial position and cash flows

thereof, and the statement of appropriations for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements of the North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency are intended to present the net position, revenues, expenses and
cash flows of only that portion of the financial statement of the State of North Dakota that is
attributable to the transactions of the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency. They do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of North Dakota as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the changes in its financial position or its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Change in Accounting Principle

Also discussed in Note 23 to the financial statements, the North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency changed its method of accounting for bonds sold at a premium or discount to the
effective interest method. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Correction of Error

As discussed in Note 23 to the financial statements, certain errors resulting in overstatements of
amount previously reported for the financial derivative instrument and deferred outflows of
resources as of June 30, 2018, were discovered by management of the Agency during the
current year. Accordingly, amounts reported for the financial derivative instrument and deferred
outflows of resources have been restated in the 2018 financial statements now presented, to
correct the error. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability,
schedule of employer contributions — pension, schedule of employer's share of net OPEB
liability, and schedule of employer contributions — OPEB, as listed in the table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s basic financial statements.
The combining financial statements shown on pages 59 to 64 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 65 and 66 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Financial Report Standards issued by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of the Inspector General, and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information shown
on pages 67 to 70 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary information on pages 59 through 72 is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
Combining Statements of Net Position, Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position, Combining Statements of Cash Flows, Housing and Urban
Development Section 8 Financial Data Schedule, Adjusted Net Worth Calculation, Insurance
Coverage Schedule, Capital Requirement Calculation, Liquid Asset Requirement Calculation
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and related notes are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 14, 2019 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

toudy Mo

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

October 14, 2019
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

The discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency (Agency) that follows is meant to provide additional insight into the Agency’s activities for
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the Agency’s financial
statements and footnotes, which are presented within this report.

North Dakota Housing Bonds issued by North Dakota Housing Finance Agency are mortgage
revenue bonds that are neither a general nor a moral obligation of the state but are a general
obligation of the Agency.

Financial Highlights

In FY2019, mortgage loans receivable increased $232,123 to $1,198,372. This included $369,723
of new loans purchased, $25,109 of Loans securitized into an MBS, $119,544 of repaid principal
on mortgage loans and an increase in loan premiums of $7,039 and an increase in mortgage loan
loss reserve of $14.

In FY2018, mortgage loans receivable increased $120,049 to $966,249. This included $296,348
of new loans purchased, $27,552 of Loans securitized into an MBS, $154,978 of repaid principal
on mortgage loans and an increase in loan premiums of $6,148 and a decrease in mortgage loan
loss reserve of $83.

In FY2019, Bonds Payable increased $294,191 from the re-stated FY2018 Bonds Payable to
$1,262,396. This included the issuance of $379,250 new Bonds, $85,556 Bonds being called or
maturing and a net increase in Bond premiums of 497. See Note 11 in the accompanying Notes
to the Financial Statements for more information regarding long term debt. Also see Note 23 for
an explanation of the Prior Period Adjustment with regards to Bond Premium amortization.

In FY2018, Bonds Payable increased $184,750 to $968,205. This included the issuance of
$308,640 new Bonds, $126,620 Bonds being called or maturing and a net increase in Bond
premiums of $2,730. See Note 11 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements for
more information regarding long term debt. Note that Prior Period Adjustments were implemented
to the FY2017 and FY2018 Bond Premium Amortization due to the Agency implementing the
Effective Interest Method.

The Agency borrowed $37,353 from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and repaid the entire
principal plus interest during FY 2019. The Agency did not draw on the Bank of North Dakota
(BND) line of credit during FY2019, however it remained available to the Agency. The beginning
and ending balances were $0 for both FHLB and BND.

The Agency borrowed $32,038 from the Bank of North Dakota and repaid the entire principal plus
interest during FY 2018. The beginning and ending balances were both $0.

The Agency’s FY2019 net position increased $12,113, to $195,244 as a result of the year’s
program operations and financing activities. Included in this number is an increase in the prior
year’s net position of $4,102 due to a prior period adjustment with regards to implementing the
Effective Interest Method in amortizing Bond Premium.



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

The Agency’s FY2018 net position increased $8,495 to $179,029 as a result of the year’s program
operations and financing activities. Included in this number is a decrease in the prior year’s net
position of $161 due to a prior period adjustment with regards to GASB 75. Note that the FY2018
net position increased $4,102 to $183,131 as a result of a Prior Period Adjustment due to
implementing the Effective Interest Method in amortizing Bond Premium.

FY2019 Income Before Transfers of $12,001 was higher than the re-stated FY2018 by $1,958 as
a result of a large increase in Mortgage loans and higher investment interest rates than the prior
year. This was partially offset by higher Bond Interest Expense. FY2018 Income Before Transfers
of $8,693 (prior to re-statement due to Prior Period Adjustments) was lower than FY2017 by
$1,191 as a result of the timing of Investment gains and the Cost of Issuance expenses for new
Bond Issues. Note that FY18 Income Before Transfers was restated to $10,043 due to the Prior
Period Adjustments.

Operating revenues in FY2019 of $49,381 were up $9,541 as a result of higher mortgage interest
income due to a larger mortgage loan receivable balance and slightly higher average mortgage
loan interest rates. Also, Investment interest rates were slightly higher along with higher
Investment balances.

Operating revenues in FY2018 of $39,840 were up $1,837 as a result of higher mortgage interest
income due to a larger mortgage loan receivable balance and slightly higher average mortgage
loan interest rates. This was offset somewhat by lower gains on sales of investments and lower
Fee income.

Operating expenses for FY2019 of $37,843 were up $7,938 from the re-stated FY2018 Operating
expenses due to higher interest expenses with regards to a larger Bonds Payable balance. Also,
Administrative and operating expenses were slightly higher than the prior year. A prior period
adjustment with regards to Bond Premium Amortization (changing to the Effective Interest
Method) amounted to lower FY2018 Operating Expenses of $1,350 from $31,255 to 29,905.

Operating expenses for FY2018 of $31,255 (prior to the adjustment for prior period adjustment)
were up $3,070 due to higher interest expenses with regards to a larger Bonds Payable balance.
Also, pension expense and operating expenses were higher offset by lower Agency grant
expenses.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The annual financial report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this
section) and the Basic Financial Statements. The financial statements of the Agency provide
accounting information similar to that of many other business entities. The Statement of Net
Position summarizes the assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position summarizes
the Agency’s operating performance for the year. The Statement of Cash Flows summarizes the
flow of cash through the Agency.



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

(In Thousands)

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Condensed Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017
(In Thousands)

ASSETS

Unrestricted current assets

Restricted current assets
Total current assets

Unrestricted noncurrent assets
Restricted noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for debt senvice
Unrestricted
Total net position

2018 2017

2019 (Restated) (Restated) Change Percentage

$ 9,707 $ 7,344 $ 6,261 $ 2,363 32
270,883 209,491 146,734 61,392 29
280,590 216,835 152,995 63,755 29
5,334 4,271 3,728 1,063 25
1,212,551 963,015 830,338 249,536 26
1,217,885 967,286 834,066 250,599 26
$1,498,475 $1,184,121 $§ 987,061 $314,354 27
$ 9,614 $ 1,968 $ 4513 § 7,646 389
$ 73289 $ 45940 $ 51,670 $ 27,349 60
1,239,221 955,567 766,367 283,654 30
$1,312,510 $1,001,507 $ 818,037 $311,003 31
$ 335 § 1,451 $ 250 $ (1,116) (77)
$ 13 § 1§ 15 $ 2 18
183,913 173,892 165,802 10,021 6
11,318 9,228 7,470 2,090 23

$ 195244 $§ 183,131 § 173,287 $ 12,113 7

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017
(In Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Mortgage interest income
Investment income
Gain on sale of investment
Fee income

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Interest expense
Agency grants
Administrative and operating

expenses
Salaries and benefits
Pension expense
OPEB expense
Depreciation

Total expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Federal grants
Non-federal grants
Investment income
Federal grants

INCOME BEFORE
TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS
Transfer in from Adjutant General
Transfer from Human Senices - Landlord Risk Mitigation
Transfers to Industrial Commission

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

GASB 75 ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED

TOTAL NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

2018 2017
2019 (Restated (Restated) Change Percentage
$ 40,728 $ 33932 $ 30,512 $ 6,796 20
5,460 2,772 2,883 2,688 97
79 182 1,098 (103) (57)
3,114 2,954 3,510 160 5
49,381 39,840 38,003 9,541 24
27,159 20,035 15,460 7,124 36
231 242 1,284 (11) (5)
6,219 5,432 4,931 787 14
3,570 3,589 3,480 (19) (1)
636 580 275 56 10
23 23 - - -
5 4 2 1 25
37,843 29,905 25,432 7,938 27
11,538 9,935 12,571 1,603 16
14,868 14,823 12,801 45 -
2 - - 2 -
461 108 66 353 327
(14,868) (14,823) (12,801) (45) -
463 108 66 355 329
12,001 10,043 12,637 1,958 19
- - (43) - -
150 - - 150 -
(38) (38) (39) - -
12,113 10,005 12,555 2,108 21
183,131 170,373 160,732 12,758 7
- 2,753 - (2,753) -
183,131 173,126 160,732 10,005 6
$ 195,244 $183,131 $173,287 $ 12,113 7

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Operating interest income is comprised of the sum of interest earnings on funds held in trust for
the Home Mortgage Finance Program. These funds are invested in investment contracts as
reported in Notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements.

FY2019 Operating interest income of $5,460 was up $2,688 from the prior year as a result of
more dollars invested throughout the year with regards to bond funds along with slightly higher
interest rates. In addition, due to low investment contract rates, the Agency uses the Bond
Proceeds as Non-purpose investments on a temporary basis to fund mortgage loans until
permanent financing is available. The interest rates are substantially higher than the Agency
would receive if investing in investment contracts.

FY2018 Operating interest income of $2,772 was down slightly from the prior year as a result of
fewer dollars invested throughout the year with regards to bond funds. Mortgage loan funding has
accelerated leaving less funds in the Proceeds GICs for extended periods of time. Investment
contract rates continue to be quite low.

Non-operating interest income represents earnings on the Agency investments, excluding the
Homeownership funds. These funds are invested in US Treasury securities, mortgage backed
securities or the Bank of North Dakota money market and demand accounts. The FY2019 Non-
Operating Interest Income of $461 was up $353 as a result of the Agency owning more GNMA
investments than in the prior year. In addition, the newer GNMA investments are at a higher
interest rate.

The FY2018 Non-Operating Interest Income of $108 was up $42 as a result of additional MBS
(GNMA Investments). These investments carry a higher interest rate than traditional savings
accounts.

Outlook

NDHFA continues to be successful in obtaining taxable and tax-exempt bond financing to
purchase mortgage loans by implementing various bond structures including issuing fixed rate
and variable rate bonds and entering Interest Rate SWAP agreements. The structure depends
on current rates available in both the bond market and the mortgage loans. The Agency continues
to monitor the markets to determine if GNMA eligible loans should be securitized into an MBS or
if bond financing is the better option.

NDHFA continues to expand the ROOTS program allowing a larger number of families to enjoy
the benefits of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s affordable rates. The ROOTS program
continues to grow which should counter against any potential downturn in the First Time Home
Buyer program. Currently, both programs are being utilized at a high level.

The Agency’s First Home program continues to purchase loans at a high level from our lender
partners. Our program offers down payment and closing cost assistance to eligible borrowers
which helps a majority of our borrowers qualify for purchasing a home. As the population stabilizes
and in many areas of the State, increases, the need for affordable homes will continue making
NDHFA programs relevant for years to come.



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Budgetary Information

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency is
funded under a biennial appropriation approved by the state legislature. The biennial
appropriation does not provide any state General Fund dollars. Hence, total Agency appropriation
is funded from Agency operations.

Contacting the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s Financial Management

The information in this report is intended to provide the reader with an overview of the Agency’s
operations along with the Agency’s accountability for those operations. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should
be addressed to the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, P.O. Box 1535, Bismarck, ND
58502-1535.



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

2019 2018 (Restated)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,430 $ 5,928
Due from State Agencies 6 9
Receivables
Interest
Loans 4 8
Investments 104 51
Due from HUD 530 152
Other 807 546
Current portion of senvice release premium 763 621
Prepaid expenses 63 29
Total unrestricted current assets 9,707 7,344
CURRENT ASSETS - RESTRICTED
Cash and cash equivalents 231,105 182,667
Investments 7,335 -
Receivables
Current portion of loans receivable 27,954 23,209
Interest
Loans 4,268 3,449
Investments 220 166
Other 1 -
Total restricted current assets 270,883 209,491
Total current assets 280,590 216,835
NONCURRENT ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED
Seniice release premium, net 5,321 4,260
Equipment, net 13 11
Total unrestricted noncurrent assets 5,334 4,271
NONCURRENT ASSETS - RESTRICTED
Loans receivable, net of current portion 1,170,418 943,040
Investments 42,133 19,975
Total restricted noncurrent assets 1,212,551 963,015
Total noncurrent assets 1,217,885 967,286
Total assets 1,498,475 1,184,121
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow - pension 1,677 1,919
Deferred outflow - OPEB 51 49
Financial derivative instrument 7,886 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 9,614 1,968

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to HUD

Due to state agencies

Current portion of rebate due to IRS
Other

Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of bonds payable
Accrued interest

Funds held in trust

Grant funds received in advance

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion

Rebate due to IRS

Grant funds received in advance
Net pension liability

Net OPEB liability

Financial derivative instrument

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow - pension
Deferred inflow - OPEB
Financial derivative instrument

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt senice
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2019 2018 (Restated)
$ 13§ 13
17 14
81 -
1,490 833
237 229
39,830 20,024
16,337 12,650
14,941 12,136
343 41
73,289 45,940
107 121
9 38
4,463 4,369
4,000 3,906
190 191
7,886 (1,239)
1,222,566 948,181
1,239,221 955,567
1,312,510 1,001,507
324 198
11 14
- 1,239
335 1,451
13 11
183,913 173,892
11,318 9,228
$ 195244 $ 183,131




NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

2019 2018 (Restated)
OPERATING REVENUES

Mortgage interest income $ 40,728 $ 33,932

Investment income 5,460 2,772

Gain on sale of investments 79 182

Fee income 3,114 2,954

Total revenues 49,381 39,840
OPERATING EXPENSES

Interest expense 27,159 20,035

Agency grants 231 242

Administrative and operating expenses 6,219 5,432

Salaries and benefits 3,570 3,589

Pension expense 636 580

OPEB expense 23 23

Depreciation 5 4

Total expenses 37,843 29,905
OPERATING INCOME 11,538 9,935
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Federal grants 14,868 14,823

Non-federal grants 2 -

Investment income 461 108

Federal grants (14,868) (14,823)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 463 108
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 12,001 10,043
TRANSFERS

Transfer from ND Department of Human Seniices 150 -

Transfer to Industrial Commission (38) (38)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 12,113 10,005
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 183,131 170,373
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (SEE NOTE 23) - 2,753
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED 183,131 173,126
TOTAL NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 195,244 $ 183,131

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-12-



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

(In Thousands)

2019 2018 (Restated)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 163,412 $ 196,057
Proceeds from sale of loans receivable 25,110 27,552
Grant funds received in advance 396 (2)
Payment of grants (609) (263)
Payments to senice providers
State agencies (155) (216)
Mortgage loan purchases (369,723) (296,347)
Other (12,221) (18,026)
Payments to employees (3,565) (3,587)
Net cash used by operating activities (197,355) (94,832)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on loan from BND / FHLB (37,353) (32,038)
Principal payments on bonds payable (89,660) (126,620)
Proceeds from loan borrowings from BND / FHLB 37,353 32,038
Proceeds from bond issuance 389,022 316,064
Interest paid on loans and bonds (23,474) (18,900)
Proceeds from federal grants 14,868 14,823
Proceeds from non-federal grants 2 -
Payment of federal grants (14,868) (14,823)
Transfer from ND Department of Human Seniices 150 -
Transfers to Industrial Commission (38) (38)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 276,002 170,506
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment (7) -
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (33,108) (19,583)
Proceeds from sale of investments 4,055 3,811
Interest received from investments 353 473
Net cash provided (used) by for investing activities (28,700) (15,299)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 49,940 60,375
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 188,595 128,220
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 238,535 $ 188,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - UNRESTRICTED $ 7,430 $ 5,928
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - RESTRICTED 231,105 182,667
$ 238,535 $ 188,595

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

2019 2018 (Restated)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 11,538 $ 9,935
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash from
operating activities:

Depreciation 5 4
Amortization
Original issue discounts and premiums (5,173) (4,694)
Senice release premium 1,048 919
Fair value (increases) decreases of investments (384) -
Reclassification of interest income/expense to other
activities 27,106 21,442
Effect on cash flows due to changes in:
Deferred outflow - pension 242 (1,183)
Deferred outflow - OPEB 2) (19)
Deferred inflows - pension 126 (52)
Deferred inflows - OPEB (3) 14
Effect on cash flows due to changes in:
Due from HUD (378) (21)
Due from State Agencies 3 (7)
Other receivables 11,133 (59,177)
Senice release premium (2,251) (1,538)
Prepaid expenses (34) 31
Loan interest receivable (815) (592)
Loans receivable (232,123) (120,048)
Due to HUD (1 (1)
Due to State Agencies 3 5
Rebate due to IRS 51 (64)
Other liabilities (10,734) 59,285
Compensated absences (6) 10
Funds held in trust 2,804 (716)
Net pension liability 94 1,637
Grant funds received in advance 396 (2)
Net cash used by operating activities $ (197,355) $ (94,832)

Non-cash disclosures:
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments $ 439 $ (388)

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
FOR THE BIENNIUM ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

2017-2019 2017-2019
Appropriations Appropriations ~ 2017-2019 Unexpended

Original As Adjusted Expenditures  Appropriations

Administrative Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 7,892 $ 7,892 $ 7,569 $ 323
Operating expenses 4,743 5,543 5,394 149
Grants, benefits and claims 31,795 31,795 30,601 1,194
Contingency 100 100 7 93
Total $ 44530 $ 45,330 $ 43,571 $ 1,759

(1) The Agency’s total appropriations of $45,330 consist of funding of $31,245 from federal
funds and $14,085 from special funds. The Agency has a continuing appropriation for
operating expenses authorized by Section 1 of SB 2014.

(2) This statement includes only those expenditures for which there are appropriations. A
reconciliation to the expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund

net position follows (in thousands):

Total expenditures $ 22,384
Less: Grants, benefits and claims (15,536)
Administrative and operating expenses relating to

Rental, Homeownership Bonds and Agency expenses 1,916

Amortization of service release premium 1,047
Interest expense for the Agency (22)
Depreciation 5

Total administrative and operation expenses,

salaries and benefits, and depreciation $ 9,794

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principal Activity

The North Dakota Housing Finance Agency (Agency) was created in 1980 by an initiated
measure. The Agency is authorized, among other things, to make mortgage and construction
loans to housing sponsors; to make loans to mortgage lenders, requiring the proceeds thereof
to be used for making new qualified residential mortgage loans; to purchase qualified mortgage
loans from mortgage lenders; and to apply for and receive assistance and subsidies under
programs of the federal government.

The Agency is authorized to issue bonds and notes in order to exercise its authorized powers.
Bonds and notes issued by the Agency under the 1994 and 2009 General Resolutions are not a
debt or liability of the State of North Dakota and the state is not liable for repayment of such
obligations. Bonds under the 1994 and 2009 General Resolutions are general obligations of the
Agency.

Reporting Entity

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) statements, the Agency
should include all component units over which the Agency exercises such aspects as (1)
appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (2) has the ability to
impose its will on that organization or (3) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific burdens on the Agency.

Based on the criteria as set forth by the GASB, no other organizations were determined to be
part of the reporting entity. The North Dakota Housing Finance Agency is included as part of
the primary government of the State of North Dakota’s reporting entity.

Budgetary Process

The Agency operates through a biennial appropriation provided by the State Legislature. The
Agency prepares a biennial budget which is included in the Governor's budget that is presented
to the General Assembly at the beginning of each legislative session. The General Assembly
enacts the budgets of the various state departments through passage of specific appropriation
bills. The Governor has line item veto powers over all legislation subject to legislative override.
Once passed and signed, the appropriation becomes the Agency's financial plan for the next
two years. The Agency has a continuous appropriation of any additional income from federal or
other funds which may become available to the Agency. Changes to the appropriation not
falling under the continuing appropriation are subject to approval by the State Emergency
Commission.

The State’s budgeting system does not include revenues and thus, a Statement of Revenues
and Expenses — Budget and Actual cannot be prepared as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. In its place, a Statement of Appropriations has been presented. The
Statement of Appropriations has been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and
includes only those expenses for which an appropriation has been established.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Accounting Standards

The Agency follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
which is the nationally accepted standard-setting body for establishing generally accepted
accounting principles for governmental entities.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Agency are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses. The funds account for the flow of resources
of carrying on specific activities in accordance with laws, regulations, or debt restrictions.

The Agency’s funds are:
Agency Operating Funds

These funds account for (1) activities related to the development and administration of Agency
financial programs, (2) HUD Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment programs, (3) Agency
owned assets and (4) any activities of the Agency not applicable to the other funds.

Homeownership Bond Funds

These funds account for the proceeds from the sale of Homeownership Bonds, the debt service
requirements of the bond indebtedness, and mortgage loans and assets acquired with bond
proceeds to finance single family home ownership.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All enterprise funds are accounted for using the economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of
these funds are included on the statement of net position. Net position is segregated into
invested in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted components. The statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net position present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases
(e.g., expenses) in total net position. When both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available for use, generally it is the Agency’s policy to use restricted net position first, and then
unrestricted net position as they are needed. The statements of cash flows present the cash
flows for operating activities, investing activities, capital and related financing activities and non-
capital financing activities.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

All of the Agency's mortgage loans are secured by houses located within the State of North
Dakota.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. All investment income, including changes in the fair
value of investments, is recognized in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position.

Funds held by trustees or the Agency under bond resolutions are to be invested to the fullest
extent possible in investment obligations selected by the Agency. The maturity date or the date
on which such investment obligations may be redeemed shall coincide as nearly as practicable
with the date or dates on which moneys in the funds or accounts for which the investments were
made will be required. The restricted bond accounts have their moneys invested in various debt
securities such as U.S. Treasury securities and investment contracts.

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay

Annual leave and sick leave are a part of permanent employees' compensation as set forth in
Section 54-06-14 of the North Dakota Century Code. Annual leave is earned based on tenure
of employment, within a range of a minimum of one working day per month of employment, to a
maximum of two working days per month of employment, to be fixed by rules and regulations
adopted by the employing unit. In general, accrued annual leave cannot exceed 30 days at
each year-end, as set by the Agency. Employees are paid for unused annual leave upon
termination or retirement.

Sick leave is earned based on tenure at the rate of one to a maximum of one and one-half
working days per month of employment. There are no limitations on the amount of sick leave
that an employee can accumulate. Employees who have ten continuous years of service are
paid one-tenth of their accumulated sick leave upon leaving service under chapter 54-52 of the
North Dakota Century Code. A liability is recognized for that portion of accumulating sick leave
benefits that is estimated will be taken as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Advances between funds during the year resulting in interfund receivables and payables have
been eliminated from the financial statements.

Mortgage Loans Receivable

Mortgage loans receivable are recorded at amounts advanced less principal payments and, in
the Homeownership Bond Fund, net of purchase discounts. Interest income on loans is
accrued at the specific rate on the unpaid principal balance.

Service Release Premium

The Agency purchases the rights to service mortgage loans from the originating financial
institutions. The payments to the originating financial institutions are recorded as a service
release premium. The premium is amortized over eleven years which is the average life of the
mortgage loans including prepayments and refinancing of the loans.

Equipment
Equipment and furnishings are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Equipment and
furnishings with a cost of $5,000 or more per unit are capitalized and reported in the

accompanying financial statements.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets which range from three to five years.

Funds Held in Trust

These amounts consist of escrow, buy-down and partial payments made by mortgagors on
loans serviced by the Agency.

Rebate Due to IRS

Under Internal Revenue Service Code Sections 103 and 148, earnings from non-purpose
investments in excess of the earnings that would have been earned had the investments been
invested at the composite effective rate equal to the bond yield, with certain exceptions, must be
remitted as rebate to the U.S. Treasury once every five years. Rebate is calculated monthly
and the liability is adjusted accordingly.

Financial Derivative Instrument

North Dakota Housing Finance Agency enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify
interest rates on outstanding debt.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) and additions
to/deductions from NDPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by NDPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) and additions
to/deductions from NDPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by NDPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues

Operating revenues consist of sales of goods and services, interest earned and proceeds from
lending activities, quasi-external operating transactions with other funds, grant revenue for
specific activities that are considered to be operating activities of the grantor, receipts from other
agencies for reimbursement of operating transactions and other miscellaneous revenue. Grants
that would qualify as an operating activity are those that do not subsidize an existing program,
rather they finance a program the Agency would not otherwise undertake. Investmentincome in
the Homeownership Bond Fund is recorded as operating income as these revenues are
generated from the Agency’s operations needed to carry out its statutory purpose.

All other revenues that do not meet the above criteria are classified as non-operating.

Fair Value of Financial Statements

Fair value measurements are used to record fair value adjustments to certain assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources to determine fair value
disclosures.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are grouped
at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded

and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:

Level 1: Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Level 2: Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,
and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are
observable in the market.

Level 3: Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions
not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect our own
estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash
flow models and similar techniques.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair values are based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is the
Agency’s policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when developing fair value measurements, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
The following is a description of the methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value.

Securities

Securities consist primarily of Federal agencies and mortgage backed securities. Securities are
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is based upon quoted prices, if available.
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured using observable market
prices from independent pricing models, or other model-based valuation techniques such as the
present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment
assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. Level 1 securities include those
traded in an active market; examples would include U.S. Treasuries. Level 2 securities as
defined above would include mortgage-backed securities and municipal bonds.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Fair values for interest rate swap agreements are based upon the settlement value adjusted by
estimated nonperformance risk.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements in order for them
to conform to the current year presentation.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS
Custodial Credit Risk

State law generally requires that all state funds be deposited in the Bank of North Dakota.
NDCC 21-04-01 provides that public funds belonging to or in the custody of the state shall be
deposited in the Bank of North Dakota. Also, NDCC 6-09-07 states, “all state funds ... must be
deposited in the Bank of North Dakota” or must be deposited in accordance with constitutional
and statutory provisions.

The bank balances of deposits of the Agency at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $22,842 and
$18,297, respectively, consisting of interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing operating cash
deposited at the Bank of North Dakota.

The deposits at the Bank of North Dakota are guaranteed by the State of North Dakota through
NDCC Section 6-09-10. The carrying amounts of the deposits of the Agency at the Bank of
North Dakota at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $22,506 and $18,064, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Agency’s cash and cash equivalents as reported on the balance
sheet at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits at Bank of North Dakota $ 7,430 $ 5,928
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 7,430 $ 5,928
Restricted
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits at Bank of North Dakota $ 15,076 $ 12,136
Deposits at Wilmington Trust 398 4,214
Cash and cash equivalents held in trust 22,234 21,693
Fixed rate investment agreements
reported as cash equivalents 193,397 144,624
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 231,105 $ 182,667

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS

The Agency does not have an investment policy that specifically addresses the risks below.
However, the respective bond resolutions permit only investments that will not adversely affect
the rating quality of the outstanding bonds. The maturity date or the date on which such
investment obligations may be redeemed shall coincide as nearly as practicable with the date or
dates on which moneys in the funds or accounts for which the investments were made will be
required.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely
affect the fair value of investments. The following shows the investments by investment type,
amount and the duration at June 30, 2019:

Total Market Less than 1-5 5-10 More Than

Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
US Treasury Bonds $ 7338 $ 733 $ - 9 - 9 -
Mortgage Backed Securities 42,133 - - - 42,133
Total Debt Securities $ 49468 $ 7,335 $ - 9 - $ 42,133

The following shows the investments by investment type, amount and the duration at June 30,
2018:

Total Market Less than 1-5 5-10 More Than

Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
US Treasury Bonds $ 1998 $ 1998 §$ - 9 - % -
Mortgage Backed Securities 17,977 - - - 17,977
Total Debt Securities $ 19975 $ 1998 § - 9 - $ 17,977

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The fixed rate investment agreements and the U.S. Treasury Bonds are not rated.

As of June 30, 2019, the Agency owned $32,601 and the 1994 General Resolution Bond Issues
owned $9,532 of the $42,133 Mortgage Backed Securities. The $9,532 is restricted funds
through the Bond Issue requirements. The Agency operating fund investment securities with a
carrying amount of approximately $9,532, (all of which are MBS owned by the Agency), at June
30, 2019 were pledged as requested by rating agencies in conjunction with the 1994 and 2009
General Resolutions and as collateral on bank loans. The U.S. Treasury bond of $7,335 is
associated with the multifamily bond at June 30, 2019 and is restricted to pay principal and
interest for that bond, which matures on August 1, 2020.

As of June 30, 2018, the Agency owned $7,873 and the 1994 General Resolution Bond Issues
owned $10,104 of the $17,977 Mortgage Backed Securities. The $10,104 is restricted funds
through the bond issue requirements. The Agency Operating Fund investment securities with a
carrying amount of approximately $9,870, (including the $7,873 MBS owned by the Agency), at
June 30, 2018 were pledged as requested by rating agencies in conjunction with the 1994 and
2009 General Resolutions and as collateral on bank loans.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

(In Thousands)

NOTE4 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below presents the balances of assets, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2019.

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ASSETS
Mortgage-backed securities
Agency $ 42133 % - $ 42133 $ -
US treasuries 7,335 7,335 - -
Total $ 49,468 $ 7,335 $ 42,133 $ -
Interest rate swap $ 7,886 $ - $ 7,886 $ -

The table below presents the balances of assets, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2018.

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable  Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ASSETS
Mortgage-backed securities
Agency $ 17,977 $ - $ 17,977 $ -
US treasuries 1,998 1,998 - -
Total $ 19,975 $ 1,998 $ 17,977 $ -
Interest rate swap $ (1,239) § - % (1,239) $ -
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

(In Thousands)

NOTES5 LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consist of the following:

2019 2018

Restricted:
Agency operating funds $ 5392 § 5,043
Less: current portion 424 227
$ 4,968 $ 4,816

Restricted:
Homeownership bond funds $ 1,192,980 $ 961,206
Less: current portion 27,530 22,982
$ 1,165,450 $ 938,224

Mortgage loans are secured by first liens on real property.

Agency and Homeownership mortgage loans are insured by a private primary mortgage insurer,
the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Veterans Administration, USDA-RD,
or uninsured with a loan to value of 80% or less.

Interest rates on Agency and Homeownership mortgage loans vary from 0.00% to 8.95% for the
year ended June 30, 2019 and from 0.00% to 8.95% for the year ended June 30, 2018 with
maturities of such loans ranging from less than one year to 40 years.

Included in Homeownership and Agency mortgage loans are loans totaling $240 which have
been foreclosed on and are owned by the Agency (REQO), $58 in real estate loans in judgment
(REJ), and 80 loans totaling $9,723 that were in the foreclosure process at June 30, 2019. At
June 30, 2018, Homeownership and Agency mortgage loans included loans totaling $165 which
have been foreclosed on and are owned by the Agency (REQO), $15 in real estate loans in
judgment (REJ), and 63 loans totaling $6,877 that were in the foreclosure process. Since such
loans are at least partially insured or guaranteed by outside parties, it is anticipated that the
Agency will recover substantially all of the unpaid principal and interest on the loans through
insurance payments or sale of foreclosed property.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE6 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The Agency operates various Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Section 8
rent subsidy programs. Under these programs the Agency draws down, in advance, sufficient
funds to cover estimated rent subsidies. An estimate of rents is used because occupancy of
rental units is not known until rent payments become due. The use of rent estimates result in
over-and-under drawdowns of HUD funds. These amounts cannot be offset and are shown at
year-end as intergovernmental receivables and payables as follows:

2019 2018
Due from HUD $ 530 $ 152

Due to HUD $ 13§ 13

NOTE7 EQUIPMENT

A summary of changes in equipment and accumulated depreciation is as follows:

Accumulated Net
Equipment Depreciation Equipment
Balance July 1, 2017 $ 203 $ 188 $ 15
Additions - 4
Deletions - -
Balance June 30, 2018 $ 203 $ 192 $ 11
Additions 7 5
Deletions (8) (8)
Balance June 30, 2019 $ 202 $ 189 $ 13
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE8 OTHER RECEIVABLES

A detail of other receivables as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Unrestricted:
Receivable from developers $ 424  $ 263
Accounts receivable 383 283
$ 807 $ 546

NOTE9 OTHER LIABILITIES

A detail of other liabilities as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Remarketing fees $ 23 $ 22
Commitment fees 94 87
Accounts payable 1,373 721
NIPB fee - 3
$ 1490  § 833
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Agency had the following transactions with related parties as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Bank of North Dakota $ 7,430 $ 5,928

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Bank of North Dakota $ 15076 $ 12,136

Due from state agencies

Housing Incentive Fund $ 6 $
Department of Commerce -

o

Due to state agencies

Information Technology Department $
Attorney General
Department of Transportation

Office of Management and Budget

-~ o~

Transfers out
Industrial Commission $ 38 $ 38

Transfer In
ND Department of Human Services $ 150 § -

Administrative and operating expenses
Bank of North Dakota
Line of credit interest expense $ - % 53
Safekeeping fees 1 -
Information Technology Department
Telephone and data processing 19 19
Data processing 71 67
Attorney General
Legal fees 46 56
Office of Management and Budget
Supplies and conferences 1
Risk management premium
Indirect cost allocation
Unemployment
Housing Incentive Fund
Administration and support 18 19
Department of Transportation
Travel 6 6

W=_a2 =22 N
—
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Change in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Amounts
Balance Due
(as restated) Balance Within

7/1/18 Additions  Reductions 6/30/19 One Year

Homeownership bond funds, par $ 950,660 $370,000 $ 89,660 $ 1,231,000 $ 34,265
Multi-family revenue bonds - 9,250 - 9,250 -
Premium on bond funds 17,546 9,773 5173 22,146 5,565
Compensated absences 350 222 228 344 237
Net pension liability 3,906 1,309 1,215 4,000 -
Net OPEB liability 191 52 53 190 -

$ 972,653 $390,606 $ 96,329 $ 1,266,930 $ 40,067

See Note 15 and Note 16 for more information on the net pension liability and net OPEB liability,
respectively. The premium on bond funds opening balance reflects the change in accounting,
see Note 23 for more details.

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due
(as restated) (as restated) Within

77117 Additions  Reductions 6/30/18 One Year

Homeownership bond funds, par $ 768,640 $308,640 $ 126,620 $ 950,660 $ 18,095
Premium on bond funds 14,816 7,424 4,694 17,546 1,929
Compensated absences 340 225 215 350 229
Net pension liability 2,269 2,749 1,112 3,906 -
Net OPEB liability 191 65 65 191 -

$ 786,256  $319,103  $ 132,706 $ 972,653  $ 20,253

See Note 15 and Note 16 for more information on the net pension liability and net OPEB liability,
respectively.

Bonds Payable

The bonds of the various Agency funds have been issued to provide financing to purchase
mortgage loans and to finance rental housing projects. The bonds are direct obligations of the
Agency and are secured by the mortgage loans purchased under the applicable resolutions; the
revenues, prepayments, insurance and foreclosure proceeds received related to the mortgage
loans; and certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the applicable bond resolution.
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Maturities of Bonds Payable

Maturities of principal and interest on all bonds are as follows:

Total Debt
Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Service
2020 $ 34,265 $ 35941 $ 70,206
2021 52,725 38,360 91,085
2022 42,315 37,162 79,477
2023 42,855 36,215 79,070
2024 42,110 35,211 77,321
2025 - 2029 201,360 160,109 361,469
2030 - 2034 201,180 130,202 331,382
2035 - 2039 221,765 95,869 317,634
2040 - 2044 211,960 58,543 270,503
2045 - 2049 181,645 19,568 201,213
2049 - 2050 8,070 195 8,265

Premiums 22,146 (22,146) -

$ 1,262,396 $ 625,229 $1,887,625

Schedules of Bonds Payable

The following summarizes the Agency’s bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 2018.
The term bonds of all bond series have mandatory sinking fund requirements. All of the bonds
payable relate to the Agency’s Homeownership Bond Fund.

Interest
Rate 2019 2018

Series 2008 B

Term Bond 07/1/2038 Variable $ 12,735 $ 12,735
Series 2009 CD

Serial Bonds 1/1/11 - 7/1/21 1.00-4.13 - 395

PAC Term Bond 1/1/2029 (Premium) 5.25 - 630

Premium (Discount) - 7
Series 2010 AB

PAC Term Bond 7/1/2028 (Premium) 5.00 - 1,055

Premium (Discount) - 6
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Series 2010 CD
Term Bond 1/1/29 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2010 EF

Serial Bonds 7/1/11 - 7/1/20

PAC Term Bond 7/1/2041 (Premium)
PAC Term Bond 1/1/2035 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2011 AB

Serial Bonds 7/1/12 - 7/1/22
Term Bond 1/1/28 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2011 CD

Serial Bonds 1/1/13 - 7/1/22
Term Bond 7/1/28 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2012 AB

Serial Bonds 7/1/13 - 7/1/21
Serial Bonds 7/1/21 - 7/1/24
Term Bond 7/1/27

Term Bond 7/1/42 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2013 A

Serial Bonds 7/1/14 - 7/1/23
Term Bond 7/1/43 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2014 AB

Serial Bonds 1/1/15 - 7/1/25
Term Bond 7/1/34 (Premium)
Term Bond 7/1/44

Premium (Discount)

Series 2015A

Serial Bonds 7/1/15 - 7/1/26
Term Bond 7/1/30

Term Bond 1/1/38 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Interest

Rate 2019 2018
4.50 $ 235 960
1 5
0.60 - 3.45 220 765
4.50 935 2,425
450 1,290 2,950
22 57
0.35-4.00 975 1,945
4.50 1,540 2,285
23 46
0.85-3.70 2,175 2,550
4.25 345 760
2 6
0.60 - 3.05 3,755 5,560
2.75-3.05 6,030 6,165
3.35 - 1,240
3.75 4,830 7,795
130 221
0.45-3.80 1,470 3,650
3.50 7,070 11,625
94 170
0.20-3.15 8,950 14,300
4.00 9,210 12,185
Variable 27,055 27,055
339 531
0.20-3.10 15,130 16,700
3.38 6,325 7,200
4.00 9,005 12,380
394 603
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Series 2015BC

Serial Bonds 1/1/16 - 7/1/25
Term Bond 1/1/36 (Premium)
Term Bond 1/1/46

Premium (Discount)

Series 2015DE

Serial Bonds 7/1/16 - 1/1/26
Term Bond 7/1/46 (Premium)
Term Bond 7/1/36

Premium (Discount)

Series 2015F
Term Bond 1/1/47

Series 2016AB

Serial Bonds 1/1/17 - 1/1/19
Serial Bonds 1/1/19 - 7/1/27
Term Bond 7/1/31

Term Bond 1/1/35

Term Bond 1/1/47 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2016CDE

Serial Bonds 1/1/17 - 7/1/22
Serial Bonds 7/1/22 - 7/1/25
Serial Bonds 7/1/25 - 7/1/28
Term Bond 7/1/32

Term Bond 1/1/36

Term Bond 7/1/46 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2017A

Serial Bonds 1/1/18 - 7/1/28
Term Bond 7/1/32

Term Bond 7/1/34

Term Bond 7/1/47 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2017BC
Serial Bonds 7/1/18 - 7/1/24
Term Bond 1/1/47

Interest

Rate 2019 2018
0.40 - 3.05 15,460 $ 18,000
4.00 13,615 17,525
Variable 17,700 17,700
527 776
0.45-2.90 18,230 19,915
4.00 16,905 21,600
Variable 25,000 25,000
714 1,020
Variable 25,000 25,000
0.85-1.30 - 550
1.05-2.60 44,765 46,565
2.95 17,750 19,765
3.20 13,725 14,110
4.00 35,990 46,045
2,098 2,862
1.00-1.95 4,005 4,055
1.70-2.15 8,350 8,350
2.15-2.60 13,750 13,750
2.85 18,955 21,435
3.15 18,540 20,970
3.50 40,285 48,510
2,205 2,917
1.10-3.05 30,420 32,700
3.55 10,225 10,465
3.70 4,430 4,530
4.00 24,425 26,200
1,237 1,639
1.60-3.15 9,795 11,060
Variable 13,940 13,940
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Series 2017DE

Serial Bonds 7/1/18 - 7/1/22
Serial Bonds 7/1/22 - 7/1/28
Term Bonds 7/1/32

Term Bonds 7/1/37

Term Bonds 7/1/40

Term Bonds 7/1/47 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2017FGH

Serial Bonds 1/1/19 - 1/1/25
Serial Bonds 1/1/25 - 7/1/208
Term Bonds 7/1/31

Term Bonds 7/1/48 (Premium)
Term Bond 7/1/39

Premium (Discount)

Series 2018A

Serial Bonds 7/1/19 - 7/1/29
Term Bonds 7/1/33

Term Bonds 7/1/38

Term Bonds 1/1/42

Term Bonds 7/1/49 (Premium)
Premium (Discount)

Series 2018BC
Serial Bonds 7/1/19 - 7/1/28
Term Bond 1/1/49

Series 2018D

Serial Bonds 7/1/19 - 7/1/30
Term Bond 7/1/33

Term Bond 7/1/38

Term Bond 7/1/42

Term Bond 1/1/49 (premium)
Premium (discount)

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Interest
Rate 2019 2018
1.05-1.90 $ 6,295 $ 7,265
1.50-2.70 13,975 13,975
3.15 10,625 10,625
3.45 15,415 15,925
3.55 8,440 8,960
4.00 28,770 30,410
1,992 2,583
1.55-2.55 14,330 15,450
2.55-3.00 9,875 9,875
3.35 8,120 9,155
4.00 31,490 32,720
Variable 28,250 28,250
1,675 2,142
1.85-3.20 25,180 25,180
3.55 11,710 11,710
3.75 17,120 17,120
3.85 13,490 13,490
4.00 32,375 32,500
1,546 1,955
2.50-3.80 15,645 15,645
Variable 9,355 9,355
1.55-3.3 33,420 -
3.55 10,835 -
3.85 20,945 -
3.95 19,350 -
4.25 40,450 -
2,461
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Interest
Rate 2019 2018

Series 2019AB
Serial Bonds 1/1/20 - 7/1/31 1.75-3.2 $ 23,450 $ -
Term Bonds 7/1/33 3.375 4,945 -
Term Bonds 7/1/35 3.5 4,010 -
Term Bonds 7/1/42 variable 25,000 -
Term Bond 7/1/49 (premium) 4.25 27,595 -
Premium (discount) 1,862 -
Series 2019C
Serial Bonds 7/1/20 - 7/1/30 16-2.6 32,675 -
Term Bonds 7/1/32 2.8 7,455 -
Term Bonds 7/1/34 3 8,000 -
Term Bonds 7/1/39 3.2 22,810 -
Term Bonds 7/1/42 3.35 14,705 -
Term Bonds 1/1/50 (premium) 4 49,355 -
Premium (discount) 4,824 -
Series 2019DE
Serial Bonds 7/1/20 - 7/1/29 25-345 4,980 -
Term Bonds 7/1/33 3.7 2,705 -
Term Bonds 7/1/39 4 5,050 -
Term Bonds 1/1/50 variable 12,265 -
2018 Multifamily Revenue Bonds 8/1/20 2.125 9,250 -

$ 1,262,396 $ 968,205

The Agency is allowed to earn a mortgage yield of 1.125% more than the yield on the
corresponding tax-exempt bonds. The Agency monitors the yield related to the bonds and
mortgages to ensure the Agency is in compliance with the yield requirements.

Revenues Pledged

The Agency has homeownership bonds outstanding in the amount of $1,253,146 maturing at
various times from July 1, 2019 through January 1, 2050. The bonds have been issued to
provide financing to purchase mortgage loans. Annual principal and interest payments on the
bonds are expected to require 98 percent of net revenues. Principal and interest paid for the
current year and total customer net revenues were $104,082 and $23,532, respectively for the
year ended June 30, 2019. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer
net revenues were $126,620 and $18,847, respectively for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Pursuant to the Series Resolutions adopted to date under the 1994 and 2009 General
Resolutions, the revenues generated by the program loans (but not the program loans
themselves) are pledged to secure the Bonds. The Agency is permitted by terms of the General
Resolutions to issue bonds and to pledge revenues pursuant to the Series Resolution which
exceed the amount required to meet the obligations of that series of bonds. In such event, it is
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likely that any such series of bonds would produce excess revenues which could be available to
redeem the related series of bonds or any other series of bonds prior to the stated maturities
thereof.

The Agency also had multifamily revenue bonds in the amount of $9,250 that mature on August
1, 2020. The bonds have been issued to pay a portion of the cost of acquiring, rehabilitation
and equipping a 186 unit multifamily residential rental property located in Fargo, North Dakota.
The bonds will be payable solely from the revenues and other money assigned to secure that
payment, which include payments required by the loan agreement. Such payment shall cover
the entire principal and interest payment for the bond.

NOTE 12 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT
Objective of the Interest Rate Swap

As a means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against fixed-rate bonds at the time of
issuance?, the agency entered into several cash flow hedges or swaps in connection with
various variable-rate housing bond series’. All Agency cash flow hedges are pay-fixed. The
intention of these swaps was to effectively change the Agency’s interest rate on the bonds to a
fixed rate®. The Agency also has cash flow hedges that were entered into in connection with
variable-rate housing bond series that no longer have bonds outstanding as those bonds have
been called. The cash flow hedges that are not connected to a specific bond series hedge the
risk related to the Agency’s other variable-rate housing bonds that are un-hedged.

Terms

The bonds and the related swap agreements have a stated issuance? and maturity date®. Some
of the swaps have optional termination dates'. Under the swaps, the Agency pays the
counterparty a fixed payment and receives a variable payment computed as a percent of the
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 7 plus a fixed percentage® on the swap notional
amount*. On the other hand, the bond’s variable-rate® coupons are determined by the
remarketing agent. If for any reason the remarketing agent fails to act, the rate shall be the
lesser of (i) the TBMA (Bond Market Association) Index plus 0.25% or (ii) the Maximum Rate as
defined within the applicable series resolution. The net change in fair value of the individual
swaps is presented in the terms table below'.

Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2019, the Agency had no swaps with a positive fair value. As of June 30, 2018,
the Agency had five swaps that had a positive fair value totaling $2,267. Of the swaps with
negative fair value, the agency is not exposed to credit risk. However, the swap exposes the
Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and TBMA converge, changing the
synthetic rate on the bonds. The swap counterparty has guaranteed all payments and is rated
AAa/AA+/AAA by Moody’s Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch, respectively. To
mitigate potential credit risk, the counterparty has entered into Credit Support Agreements with
Bank of New York Mellon, the Royal Bank of Canada, and Wells Fargo as a credit
enhancement.
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The Agency has entered into netting arrangements whenever it has entered into more than one
derivative instrument transaction with counterparties. Under the terms of these arrangements
netting provisions permit each party to net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum will
be owed by, or owed to, the other party. At June 30, 2019 the Agency owed the swap providers
a fixed rate on the notional amount of the swaps of $2,566 and the swap providers owed the
Agency a variable rate on the notional amounts of $1,657 making the net payment that the
Agency owe the swap providers $909.

Fair Value

Due to the difference in the variable rate indices, the swaps had a net negative fair value'® of
$7,886 at June 30, 2019 and a net positive fair value'® $1,239 at June 30, 2018. Accordingly,
the financial derivative instrument is reported as a liability and the accumulated changes in fair
value of the swaps were reported as a deferred outflow at June 30, 2019 and 2018. The
coupon on the government’s variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do
not have a corresponding fair value increase. All valuations are as of the valuation date
indicated. Mid-Market or indicative unwind valuations may be derived from broker quotations or
from proprietary models that take into consideration estimates about relevant present and future
market conditions as well as the size and liquidity of the position and any related actual or
potential hedging transactions. Valuations based on other models or different assumptions may
yield different results.

Basis Risk

The swap exposes the Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and the
actual variable rates converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The effect of this
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rate® and the
synthetic rate'? as of June 30, 2019 and 2018. If a change occurs that results in the rates’
moving to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be realized.

Termination Risk

The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master Agreement,
which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The
Schedule to the Master Agreement includes an “additional termination event.” That is, the swap
may be terminated if counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below “A3” as issued by Moody’s
Investors Service or “A-“ as issued by Fitch Ratings or Standard & Poor’s. The swap may be
terminated at any time by the agency or the counterparty with 30 days written notice up to limits
specified in the swap agreement. If the swap or swaps were terminated, the variable-rate bonds
would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a
negative fair value, the Agency would be liable to the counterparty for payment equal to the
swap’s fair value, but in the event the fair value is positive, the counterparty would be liable to
the Agency.

Rollover Risk

The Agency is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments that are hedges of
debt that mature or may be terminated prior to the maturity of the hedged debt. When these
hedging derivative instruments terminate, or in the case of a termination option, if the
counterparty exercises its option, the Agency will be re-exposed to the risks being hedged by
the hedging derivative instrument. The Agency also is exposed to rollover risk on the swaps
that mature and the Agency does not call the related variable rate debt.
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The terms of the interest rate swaps at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

1 Bond Series 2008 B 2014 B 2015 C 2015 E
2 Issuance Date 3/26/2008 6/24/2014 6/23/2015 5/1/2016
3 Maturity Date 7/1/2038 7/1/2044 1/1/2046 7/1/2036
4 Notional Amount 5 27,055 17,700 25,000
5 Variable-rate Bonds 5 27,055 17,700 25,000
5  Fixed Rate 4.725% 2.890% 2.486% 2.257%
7 LIBOR Percentage 100.00% 65.80% 66.20% 66.40%
8 Additional Percentage 0.00% 0.17% 0.10% 0.22%
®  Bonds Variable-rate 2.36000% 1.97000% 2.63000% N/A
10 Fair Value (127) (839) (465) (590)
" Percentage of LIBOR 2.39800% 1.74788% 1.68748% 1.81227%
2 Synthetic Rate 4.68700% 3.11212% 3.42852% 0.44473%
3 Actual Synthetic Rate 4.92102% 2.77968% 3.17451% 2.39800%
4 Change in Fair Value (128) 348 (635) (946)
5 Optional Termination Date 1/1/2020 N/A 7/1/2020 7/1/2020
1 Bond Series 2015 F 2017C 2017H 2018C
2 Issuance Date 12/8/2015 5/10/2017 12/21/2017 6/14/2018
8 Maturity Date 1/1/2047 7/1/2047 7/1/2039 1/1/2049
4 Notional Amount 21 20,545 28,250 9,355
5 Variable-rate Bonds 21 20,545 28,250 9,355
6  Fixed Rate 2.320% 2.783% 2.266% 3.515%
7 LIBOR Percentage 100.00% 100.00% 66.40% 100.00%
8 Additional Percentage 0.00% 0.00% 0.09% 0.00%
9  Bonds Variable-rate 2.38000% 2.37408% 1.92000% 2.38000%
10 Fair Value (183) (1,138) (1,188) (1,121)
" Percentage of LIBOR 2.39800% 2.39800% 1.68227% 2.39800%
2 Synthetic Rate 2.30200% 2.75858% 2.50373% 3.49700%
13 Actual Synthetic Rate 2.28243% 2.69555% 2.22250% 3.40774%
4 Change in Fair Value 1,199 1,684 1,367 839
5 Optional Termination Date 1/1/2025 71112027 7/1/2023 71112027
' Bond Series 2019B 2019E
2 Issuance Date 2/13/2019 6/25/2019
3 Maturity Date 1/1/2043 1/1/2050
4 Notional Amount 25 12
5 Variable-rate Bonds 25 12
6 Fixed Rate 2.693% 3.171%
7 LIBOR Percentage 70.00% 100.00%
8 Additional Percentage 0.00% 0.00%
®  Bonds Variable-rate 2.30000% 2.30000%
0 Fair Value (1,417) (818)
" Percentage of LIBOR 1.67860% 2.39800%
2 Synthetic Rate 3.31390% 3.07300%
13 Actual Synthetic Rate 3.08702% 3.43035%
4 Change in Fair Value (1,417) (818)
5 Optional Termination Date 1/1/2024 7/1/2028
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The terms of the interest rate swaps at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

1 Bond Series 2008 B 2014 B 2015 C 2015 E
2 Issuance Date 3/26/2008 6/24/2014 6/23/2015 5/1/2016
3 Maturity Date 7/1/2038 7/1/2044 1/1/2046 7/1/2036
4 Notional Amount 6 27,055 17,700 25,000
5 Variable-rate Bonds 6 27,055 17,700 25,000
6 Fixed Rate 4.725% 2.890% 2.486% 2.257%
7 LIBOR Percentage 100.00% 65.80% 66.20% 66.40%
8  Additional Percentage 0.00% 0.17% 0.10% 0.22%
®  Bonds Variable-rate 2.00000% 1.53000% 2.24000% N/A
10 Fair Value (255) (491) 170 356
" Percentage of LIBOR 2.06840% 1.53101% 1.46928% 1.59342%
2. Synthetic Rate 4.65660% 2.88990% 3.25672% 0.65800%
3 Actual Synthetic Rate 4.98024% 2.78873% 3.20389% 2.06840%
4 Change in Fair Value (295) (827) (504) (844)
5 Optional Termination Date 1/1/2020 N/A 7/1/2020 7/1/2020
T Bond Series 2015 F 2017C 2017H 2018C
2 Issuance Date 12/8/2015 5/10/2017 12/21/2017 6/14/2018
3 Maturity Date 1/1/2047 7/1/2047 7/1/2039 1/1/2049
4 Notional Amount 23,145 20,545 28,250 9,355
5 Variable-rate Bonds 23,145 20,545 28,250 9,355
6 Fixed Rate 2.320% 2.783% 2.266% 3.515%
7 LIBOR Percentage 100.00% 100.00% 66.40% 100.00%
8  Additional Percentage 0.00% 0.00% 0.09% 0.00%
®  Bonds Variable-rate 2.00000% 2.00000% 1.50000% 2.00000%
10 Fair Value 1,016 546 179 (282)
" Percentage of LIBOR 2.06840% 2.06840% 1.46342% 2.06840%
2 Synthetic Rate 2.25160% 2.71410% 2.30258% 3.44660%
3 Actual Synthetic Rate 2.30706% 2.71646% 2.34687% 3.43035%
4 Change in Fair Value 922 (1,041) 179 (282)
5 Optional Termination Date 1/1/2025 71112027 7/1/2023 71112027
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Swap Payments and Associated Debt
Using rates as of June 30, 2019, debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and net

swap payments are as follows. Interest calculations were based on rates as of June 30, 2019.
As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.

Fiscal year Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Swap, Net Total
2020 $ 2545 % 3694 § 1,810  $ 8,049
2021 2,335 3,637 1,799 7,771
2022 2,130 3,585 1,789 7,504
2023 1,945 3,538 1,780 7,263
2024 1,775 3,495 1,773 7,043
2025 - 2029 22,865 16,445 8,387 47,697
2030 - 2034 34,765 14,392 6,586 55,743
2035 - 2039 61,750 10,067 3,991 75,808
2040 - 2044 47,005 4,013 1,518 52,536
2045 - 2049 12,900 665 219 13,784
2050 - 2054 1,710 14 5 1,729

$ 191,725 § 63545 § 29657 § 284,927

NOTE 13 LINE OF CREDIT - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA

The following is a summary of changes in loan from the Bank of North Dakota for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Balance July 1, 2017 $ -
Principal payments on advance from Bank of North Dakota (32,038)
Loan advance from Bank of North Dakota 32,038

Balance June 30, 2018 $ -

The above line of credit is used by the Agency to fund mortgages. As of June 30, 2019, the line
of credit has no outstanding balance, has a credit limit of $60,000 and expires on July 1, 2020.
The line of credit bears interest at 1.50% over the 1 month LIBOR index with a minimum interest
rate of 2.25%. The Agency did not make draws on this line of credit during the year ending
June 30, 2019. As of June 30, 2018, the line of credit with the Bank of North Dakota is secured
by the mortgages funded by the advances, has a credit limit of $60,000 and expires on July 1,
2019. The line of credit bears interest at 1.50% over the 1 month LIBOR index with a minimum
interest rate of 2.25%.
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NOTE 14 LETTER OF CREDIT - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF DES MOINES

The following is a summary of changes in the letter of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB) of Des Moines for the year ended June 30, 2019. There were draws on the letter of
credit during fiscal year 2018, as the Agency entered into the letter of credit on June 28, 2018.

Balance June 1, 2018 $ -
Principal payments on advance from Federal Home Loan Banks (37,353)
Loan advance from Federal Home Loan Banks 37,353

Balance June 30, 2019 $ -

The Agency maintains a collateral pledge agreement with the FHLB covering secured advances
whereby the Agency has agreed to retain residential real estate loans and marketable
securities, free of all other pledges, liens and encumbrances. The pledged loans and securities
are discounted by FHLB when determining their borrowing capacity. The aggregate borrowing
capacity of eligible collateral was approximately $85,066 as of June 30, 2019. In addition,
borrowings are collateralized by $30,673 of loans receivable and $136 of cash and investments.

NOTE 15 PENSION PLAN
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (Main System)

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general information purposes only.
Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter 54-52 for more complete information.

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
substantially all employees of the State of North Dakota, its agencies and various participating
political subdivisions. NDPERS provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to
administer the plan is financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan.

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS defined benefit pension plan is assigned to a
Board comprised of nine members. The Board consists of a Chairman, who is appointed by the
Governor; one member appointed by the Attorney General; one member appointed by the State
Health Officer; three members elected by the active membership of the NDPERS system; one
member elected by the retired public employees, and two members of the legislative assembly
appointed by the chairman of the legislative management.

Pension Benefits

Benefits are set by statute. NDPERS has no provisions or policies with respect to automatic and
ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases. Member of the Main System are entitled to unreduced
monthly pension benefits beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or
exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at normal retirement age (65). For members hired on or after January
1, 2016 the Rule of 85 will be replaced with the Rule of 90 with a minimum age of 60. The
monthly pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their average monthly salary, using the highest 36
months out of the last 180 months of service, for each year of service. The plan permits early
retirement at ages 55-64 with three or more years of service.
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Members may elect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a single life, joint and survivor,
term-certain annuity, or partial lump sum with ongoing annuity. Members may elect to receive
the value of their accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump sum distribution upon
retirement or termination, or they may elect to receive their benefits in the form of an annuity.
For each member electing an annuity, total payment will not be less than the members’
accumulated contributions plus interest.

Death and Disability Benefits

Death and disability benefits are set by statute. If an active member dies with less than three
years of service for the Main System, a death benefit equal to the value of the member’'s
accumulated contributions, plus interest, is paid to the member’s beneficiary. If the member has
earned more than three years of credited service for the Main System, the surviving spouse will
be entitled to a single payment refund, life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of
the member’s accrued normal retirement benefit, or monthly payments in an amount equal to
the member’s accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit if the member had reached
normal retirement age prior to date of death. If the surviving spouse dies before the member’s
accumulated pension benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse’s
designated beneficiary.

Eligible members who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days of service, receive
monthly disability benefits equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of
$100. To qualify under this section, the member has to become disabled during the period of
eligible employment and apply for benefits within one year of termination. The definition for
disabled is set by the NDPERS in the North Dakota Administrative Code.

Refunds of Member Account Balance

Upon termination, if a member of the Main System is not vested (is not 65 or does not have
three years of service), they will receive the accumulated member contributions and vested
employer contributions, plus interest, or may elect to receive this amount at a later date. If the
member has vested, they have the option of applying for a refund or can remain as a terminated
vested participant. If a member terminated and withdrew their accumulated member
contribution and is subsequently reemployed, they have the option of repurchasing their
previous service.

Member and Employer Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and are established as
a percent of salaries and wages. Member contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution
rates are 7.12% of covered compensation.

The member’s account balance includes the vested employer contributions equal to the
member’s contributions to an eligible deferred compensation plan. The minimum member
contribution is $25 and the maximum may not exceed the following:

1 to 12 months of service — Greater of one percent of monthly salary or $25

13 to 24 months of service — Greater of two percent of monthly salary or $25

25 to 36 months of service — Greater of three percent of monthly salary or $25
Longer than 36 months of service — Greater of four percent of monthly salary or $25
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Agency reported a liability of $4,000 and $3,906 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Agency's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on the Agency's share of covered payroll in the Main System
pension plan relative to the covered payroll of all participating Main System employers. At June
30, 2018, the Agency's proportion was 0.236966 percent, which was a decrease of 0.006028
percent from its proportion measured of 0.242994 as of June 30, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Agency recognized pension expense of $636. At June
30, 2019, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 11 $ (136)
Changes of assumptions 1,443 (57)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - (19)
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 49 (112)
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 174 -
Total $ 1,677 $ (324)

$174 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Agency
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 388
2021 335
2022 287
2023 162
2024 7
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For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Agency recognized pension expense of $580. At June
30, 2018, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 23 $ (20)
Changes of assumptions 1,602 (88)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 52 -
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 63 (90)
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 179 -
Total $ 1,919 $ (198)

$179 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Agency
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

0
Inflation 2.50%
Service At
Salary increases Beqinning of Year State Employee
0 12.00%
1 9.50%
2 7.25%
Age
Under 30 7.25%
30-39 6.50%
40-49 6.25%
50-59 5.75%
60+ 5.00%

*Age-based salary increase rates apply for employees with three or more years of service
Investment rate of return  7.75%, net of investment expenses

Cost-of-living adjustments None
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For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table set back two years for males and three years for
females, projected generationally using the SSA 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014. For
disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set back
one year for males (no setback for females) multiplied by 125%.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
Fund’s target asset allocation for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is summarized in the
following table:

2019 Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Target Real Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation 2019 2018
Domestic Equity 30% 6.05% 6.05%
International Equity 21% 6.71% 6.70%
Private Equity 7% 10.20% 10.20%
Domestic Fixed 23% 1.45% 1.43%
Income
International Fixed 0% 0.00% -0.45%
Income
Global Real Assets 19% 5.11% 5.16%

Discount rate

For PERS, GASB Statement No. 67 includes a specific requirement for the discount rate that is
used for the purpose of the measurement of the Total Pension Liability. This rate considers the
ability of the System to meet benefit obligations in the future. To make this determination,
employer contributions, employee contributions, benefit payments, expenses and investment
returns are projected into the future. The current employer and employee fixed rate
contributions are assumed to be made in each future year. The Plan Net Position (assets) in
future years can then be determined and compared to its obligation to make benefit payments in
those years. In years where assets are not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments,
which is the case for the PERS plan, the use of a municipal bond rate is required.

The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is equivalent to applying these two rates to the benefits that
are projected to be paid during the different time periods. The SDR reflects (1) the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in which the fiduciary net
position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and (2) a tax-exempt municipal bond rate
based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of
the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected
rate of return are not met).
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For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is
7.75%; the municipal bond rate is 3.62%; and the resulting Single Discount Rate is 6.32%.

Sensitivity of the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate

The following presents the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 6.44 percent, as well as what the Agency's proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (5.32 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.32 percent) than the current rate at
June 30, 2019:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
5.32% 6.32% 7.32%
Employer's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 5,434 $ 4,000 $ 2,802

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NDPERS financial report. Requests to obtain or review this report should be addressed
to the Executive Director — NDPERS, P.O. Box 1657, Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657.

NOTE 16 OPEB PLAN
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general information purposes only.
Participants should refer to NDAC Chapter 71-06 for more complete information.

NDPERS OPEB plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that covers
members receiving retirement benefits from the PERS, the HPRS, and Judges retired under
Chapter 27-17 of the North Dakota Century Code a credit toward their monthly health insurance
premium under the state health plan based upon the member's years of credited service.
Effective July 1, 2015, the credit is also available to apply towards monthly premiums under the
state dental, vision and long-term care plan and any other health insurance plan. The Retiree
Health Insurance Credit Fund is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis.

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS defined benefit OPEB plan is assigned to a
Board comprised of nine members. The Board consists of a Chairman, who is appointed by the
Governor; one member appointed by the Attorney General; one member appointed by the State
Health Officer; three members elected by the active membership of the NDPERS system, one
member elected by the retired public employees and two members of the legislative assembly
appointed by the chairman of the legislative management.
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OPEB Benefits

The employer contribution for the PERS, the HPRS and the Defined Contribution Plan is set by
statute at 1.14% of covered compensation. The employer contribution for employees of the
state board of career and technical education is 2.99% of covered compensation for a period of
eight years ending October 1, 2015. Employees participating in the retirement plan as part-
time/temporary members are required to contribute 1.14% of their covered compensation to the
Retiree Health Insurance Credit Fund. Employees purchasing previous service credit are also
required to make an employee contribution to the Fund. The benefit amount applied each year
is shown as "prefunded credit applied" on the Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position for the
OPEB trust funds.

Retiree health insurance credit benefits and death and disability benefits are set by statute.
There are no provisions or policies with respect to automatic and ad hoc post-retirement benefit
increases. Employees who are receiving monthly retirement benefits from the PERS, the HPRS,
the Defined Contribution Plan, the Chapter 27-17 judges or an employee receiving disability
benefits, or the spouse of a deceased annuitant receiving a surviving spouse benefit or if the
member selected a joint and survivor option are eligible to receive a credit toward their monthly
health insurance premium under the state health plan.

Effective July 1, 2015, the credit is also available to apply towards monthly premiums under the
state dental, vision and long-term care plan and any other health insurance plan. The benefits
are equal to $5.00 for each of the employee’s, or deceased employee's years of credited
service not to exceed the premium in effect for selected coverage. The retiree health insurance
credit is also available for early retirement with reduced benefits.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Agency reported a liability of $190 and $191 for its
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June
30, 2018 and 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Employer's proportion of the net OPEB
liability was based on the Employer's share of covered payroll in the OPEB plan relative to the
covered payroll of all participating OPEB employers. At June 30, 2019, the Agency's proportion
was 0.241393 percent, which is an increase of 0.000352 percent from its proportion measured
of 0.241038 percent as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Employer recognized OPEB expense of $23. At June 30,

2019, the Employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

- 46 -



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 6 $ (4)
Changes of assumptions 15 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
OPEB plan investments - (5)
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - (2)
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 30 -
Total $ 51 $ (11)

$30 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Agency
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPERB liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEBs will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2020 $
2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Employer recognized OPEB expense of $23. At June 30,
2018, the Employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:
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Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ (5)
Changes of assumptions 19 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - (7)
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - (2)
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 30 -
Total $ 49 $ (14)

$30 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Agency
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPERB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.

Actuarial assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases Not applicable

Investment rate of return 7.50%, net of investment expenses
Cost-of-living adjustments None

For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table set back two years for males and three years for
females, projected generationally using the SSA 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014. For
disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set back
one year for males (no setback for females) multiplied by 125%.

The long-term expected investment rate of return assumption for the RHIC fund was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of RHIC investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. Estimates of arithmetic real rates of return, for each major
asset class included in the RHIC’s target asset allocation as of July 1, 2018 and 2019 are
summarized in the following table:
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2019 Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Target Real Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation 2019 2018
Large Cap
Domestic Equities 37% 7.15% 5.80%
Small Cap
Domestic Equities 9% 14.42% 7.05%
International
Equities 14% 8.83% 6.20%
Core-Plus Fixed
Income 40% 0.10% 1.56%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member and statutory/Board approved
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to those based on the July 1, 2018, and July
1, 2017, HPRS actuarial valuation reports. For this purpose, only employer contributions that
are intended to fund benefits of current RHIC members and their beneficiaries are included.
Projected employer contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan
members and their beneficiaries are not included. Based on those assumptions, the RHIC
fiduciary net position was projected to be sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on RHIC investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Agency's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the
discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plans as of June 30, 2018, calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the RHIC net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Employer's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $ 241 $ 190 $ 147

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately

issued NDPERS financial report. Requests to obtain or review this report should be addressed
to the Executive Director — NDPERS, P.O. Box 1657, Bismarck, North Dakota, 58502-1657.
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NOTE 17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received from federal grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the
federal grantor agencies. Any disallowed grant costs may constitute a liability. The amount, if
any, of costs which may be disallowed by the grantor will be recognized in the year determined.

In the normal course of business, the Agency makes various commitments that are not reflected
in the accompanying financial statements. These commitments include commitments to extend
credit and the debt reduction required when related loan acquisition funds are not drawn down
within prescribed time frames set by the specific bond resolutions.

The Agency’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these
commitments. The Agency follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments.

2019 2018
Commitments to extend credit $ 524 $ 35,812
Loan Acquisition Fund $ 53,474 $ 11,136

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses. Since many of the commitments may expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Agency,
is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.

The Bond resolutions require that the funds in the loan acquisition accounts be expended within
42 months of the related bond delivery date. Any remaining funds must be used for debt
reductions.

NOTE 18 REBATE DUE TO IRS

A detail of the cumulative rebate at June 30 is as follows:

2019 2018

Series 15 A $ 90 $ 38
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A summary of the rebate due to IRS at June 30 is as follows:

2019 2018
Beginning balance, July 1 $ 38 $ 102
Additions 52 6
Reductions - (70)
Ending balance, June 30 $ 90 $ 38
Amounts due within one year $ 81 $ -

NOTE 19 FUND NET POSITION

Based on certain bond covenants, all assets and fund net position of the Homeownership Bond
fund are restricted for debt service.

The Agency operating fund has investment securities pledged under the 1994 and 2009
General Bond Resolutions. The financial statements identify this fund as unrestricted, however,
all Agency net position is a reserved general obligation of the bond series. The general
obligation (issuer) rating by Moody’s Investor Service (a national financial rating service) is
influenced by the relationship of Agency net position to several other financial statement factors
and major investors monitor the amount of net position as additional collateral for the publicly
traded bond investments.

NOTE 20 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
following are funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues:

The 1995 Legislative Session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal
service fund, to provide a self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of state
agencies resulting from the elimination of the state's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages
the tort liability of the state, its agencies' employees, and the University System. All state
agencies participate in the RMF and their fund contribution was determined using a projected
cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of the State is limited to a total of $250 per
person and $1,000 per occurrence. The Agency is also covered through a casualty obligatory
excess of loss reinsurance contract that RMF has with an outside party that provides additional
coverage amount of $250 per person and $1,000 per occurrence.

The Agency also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding
Fund. The Agency pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property
damage to personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating
replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund
is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per
occurrence during a twelve-month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the
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Agency with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000 for its employees. The
State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage.

The Agency, as a contributor to RMF, participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety &
Insurance (NDWSI), an Enterprise Fund of the State of North Dakota. The NDWSI is a state
insurance fund and a "no fault" insurance system covering the State's employers and
employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The premiums are available for the
payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

NOTE 21 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Agency maintains two Enterprise Funds which provide loans to finance construction of

residential housing and single family homeownership. Statement of Net Position segment
information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Agency

Operating Homeownership Total

Funds Bond Funds Eliminations Enterprise
Statement of Net Position

Current assets - other $ 36,039 $ 262,372 $ (17,821) $ 280,590
Capital assets - net 13 - - 13
Noncurrent assets - other 10,289 1,207,583 - 1,217,872
Total assets 46,341 1,469,955 (17,821) 1,498,475
Deferred outflow of resources 1,728 7,886 - 9,614
Current liabilities - other 18,393 72,717 (17,821) 73,289
Noncurrent liabilities - other 18,010 1,221,211 - 1,239,221
Total liabilities 36,403 1,293,928 (17,821) 1,312,510
Deferred inflow of resources 335 - - 335
Invested in capital assets 13 - - 13
Net position - unrestricted 11,318 - - 11,318
Net position - restricted - 183,913 - 183,913
Total net position $ 11,331 $ 183,913 $ - $ 195,244
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Statement of Net Position segment information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018

(restated), was as follows:

Agency
Operating Homeownership Total
Funds Bond Funds Eliminations Enterprise
Statement of Net Position
Current assets - other $ 22,105 $ 223,945 $ (29,215) $ 216,835
Capital assets - net 11 - - 11
Noncurrent assets - other 9,076 958,199 - 967,275
Total assets 31,192 1,182,144 (29,215) 1,184,121
Deferred outflow of resources 1,968 - - 1,968
Current liabilities - other 15,122 60,033 (29,215) 45,940
Noncurrent liabilities - other 8,587 946,980 - 955,567
Total liabilities 23,709 1,007,013 (29,215) 1,001,507
Deferred inflow of resources 212 1,239 - 1,451
Invested in capital assets 11 - - 1
Net position - unrestricted 9,228 - - 9,228
Net position - restricted - 173,892 - 173,892
Total net position $ 9,239 $ 173,892 $ - $ 183,131

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position and Statement of Cash
Flows segment information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Agency
Operating Homeownership Total
Funds Bond Funds Eliminations Enterprise
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Change in Fund Net Position
Operating revenues
Mortgage interest income $ 100 $ 40,628 $ - $ 40,728
Investment income - 5,460 - 5,460
Gain on sale of investments - 79 - 79
Fee income 9,406 - (6,292) 3,114
Depreciation (5) - - (5)
Other operating expenses (8,015) (36,115) 6,292 (37,838)
Operating income 1,486 10,052 - 11,538
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Federal grants 14,868 - - 14,868
Non-federal grants 2 - - 2
Investment income 461 - - 461
Federal grants (14,868) - - (14,868)
Transfers 112 - - 112
Change in net position 2,061 10,052 - 12,113
Total net position, beginning of year,
as originally stated 9,239 173,892 - 183,131
Prior period adjustment - - - -
Total net position, beginning of year, restated 9,239 173,892 - 183,131
Equity transfer in (out) 31 (31) - -
Total net position, end of year $ 11,331 $ 183,913 $ - $ 195,244
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Agency
Operating Homeownership Total
Funds Bond Funds Eliminations Enterprise
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash used by operating activities $ 4256 $ (201,611)  $ - $ (197,355)
Net cash used for noncapital
financing activities 8,992 267,010 - 276,002
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (7) - - (7)
Net cash from (used by) investing activities (6,496) (22,204) - (28,700)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 6,745 43,195 - 49,940
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 18,064 170,531 - 188,595
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 24,809 $ 213,726 $ - $ 238,535

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position and Statement of Cash
Flows segment information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Agency
Operating Homeownership Total
Funds Bond Funds Eliminations Enterprise
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Change in Fund Net Position
Operating revenues
Mortgage interest income $ 159 $ 33,773 $ - 33,932
Investment income - 2,772 - 2,772
Gain on sale of investments - 182 - 182
Fee income 8,799 - (5,845) 2,954
Depreciation 4) - - 4)
Other operating expenses (7,851) (27,895) 5,845 (29,901)
Operating income 1,103 8,832 - 9,935
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Federal grants 14,823 - - 14,823
Investment income 108 - - 108
Federal grants (14,823) - - (14,823)
Transfers (38) - - (38)
Change in net position 1,173 8,832 - 10,005
Total net position, beginning of year,
as previously reported 7,324 163,049 - 170,373
Prior period adjustment - 2,753 - 2,753
Total net position, beginning of year, restated 7,324 165,802 - 173,126
Equity transfer in (out) 742 (742) - -
Total net position, end of year $ 9,239 $ 173,892 $ - $ 183,131
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash by operating activities $ 39 $ (94,793) % - $ (94,832
Net cash used for noncapital
financing activities 3,841 166,665 - 170,506
Net cash from (used by) investing activities (3,589) (11,710) - (15,299)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 213 60,162 - 60,375
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 17,851 110,369 - 128,220
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 18,064 $ 170,531 $ - $ 188,595
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NOTE 22 OPERATING LEASES

The Agency leases office space and office equipment classified as operating leases expiring at
varying terms over the next year. Following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental
payments required under the operating leases:

Year ending June 30,
2020 $ 228
2021 227

Total rental expense was $217 and $219 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.
NOTE 23 RESTATEMENTS
Change in Accounting Principle

In previous years, the Agency accounted for bond premiums and discounts under the straight-
line method. In 2019, the Agency changed its method of accounting for bond premiums and
discounts to the effective interest rate method and retroactively restated their financial
statements as if this method was always used. As a result of the differences in methods, a prior
period adjustment of $2,753 was recorded to decrease premiums on bond funds and increase
net position as of July 1, 2017. In addition, the 2018 financial statements were restated to
reflect the effective interest rate method which resulted in a decrease of $1,350 of interest
expense and premiums on bond funds.

Correction of Error

The Agency has corrected its 2018 financial statements to properly record its’ financial
derivative instrument. The effect of this adjustment was to decrease noncurrent liabilities,
specifically, financial derivative instrument by $2,478, decrease deferred outflows of resources /
financial derivative instrument by $1,239 and increase deferred inflows of resources / financial
derivative instrument by $1,239.

NOTE 24 ISSUED BUT NON-EFFECTIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This
Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were
previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. This
Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier
application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, provides a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice associated with (1)
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations,
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and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement clarifies the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishes that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishes
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations;
and improves required note disclosures. This Statement also addresses arrangements—often
characterized as leases—that are associated with conduit debt obligations. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier
application is encouraged.

Management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the Agency’s
financial statements.

NOTE 26 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No significant events occurred subsequent to the Agency’s year end. Subsequent events have

been evaluated through October 14, 2019, the date these financial statements were available to
be issued.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands)

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Employer’s
proportionate share

Employer’s of the net pension Plan fiduciary

Employer’s proportionate Employer’'s liability (asset) as a net position as

proportion of the share of the covered- percentage of its a percentage

net pension net pension employee covered-employee of the total

liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll payroll pension liability
2019 0.236966% $ 4,000 $ 2,510 159.36% 62.80%
2018 0.242994% 3,906 2,481 157.44% 61.98%
2017 0.232841% 2,269 2,346 96.72% 70.46%
2016 0.243446% 1,655 2,169 76.30% 77.15%
2015 0.252770% 1,604 2,129 75.34% 77.70%

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Pension
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Contributions in Employer’s Contributions as a
Statutorily relation to the Contribution covered- percentage of
required statutorily required deficiency employee covered-employee
contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2019 $ 174 $ (174) $ - $ 2443 7.12%
2018 179 (179) - 2,510 7.13%
2017 180 (180) - 2,474 7.28%
2016 170 (170) - 2,314 7.35%
2015 165 (165) - 2,229 7.40%

*Complete data for these schedules is not available prior to 2015.
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Changes of Assumptions
Amounts reported in 2019 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective July 1, 2018 based on
the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015. This includes changes to the

mortality tables, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary
scale, and percent married assumption.
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North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net OPEB Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Employer’s
proportionate share
Employer’s of the net OPEB Plan fiduciary
Employer’s proportionate Employer’s liability (asset) as a net position as
proportion of the share of the covered- percentage of its a percentage
net OPEB net OPEB employee covered-employee of the total
(asset) liability (asset) payroll payroll OPERB liability
2019 0.241393% $ 190 $ 2,661 7.15% 61.89%
2018 0.241038% 191 2,608 7.31% 58.78%
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
Schedule of Employer Contributions - OPEB
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Contributions in Employer’s Contributions as
Statutorily relation to the Contribution covered- a percentage of
required statutorily required deficiency employee covered-
contribution contribution (excess) payroll employee payroll
2019 $ 30 $ (30) $ - $ 2618 1.14%
2018 30 (30) - 2,661 1.13%

*Complete data for these schedules is not available prior to 2018.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Changes of Assumptions

Amounts reported in 2018 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective July 1, 2018 based on
the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015. This includes changes to the
mortality tables, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary

scale, and percent married assumption.

-58 -



Imml

896°L 7196 - ¥19'6 988°, - 988°/, 8zL'L
- 988°/ - 988, 988°, - 988°, -
6¥ Ko} - LS - - - Ko}
616l 119V - 1191 - - - 1191
LZL'v8L L Glv'86Y'L (1z8'21) 96Z°9LG°L 656697 | Zro'orl €16'eTeL LvE ‘o
982296 688,12’ - G881 L €8G°202") 696821 ¥19'8/0°L 20e'0l
G10'€96 Lgg'ziz’L - Lgg'zie’L £8G°202°) 696'82L #19'8/0°L 896'%
G/6'6L €Ly - €elLey €eLey 006°€ €€2'8¢ -
0v0‘ch6 8Ly 0LL L - 8Ly'0LL L 0S7°G9L ‘L 690621 18E‘0¥0°L 896'%
L2y YEE’s - ¥Ee’s - - - YEE’S
[ €l - €l - - - €l
09zt 12€'s - 12e's - - - 12€'s
5£8°91Z 065082 (1z8'21) LLY'862 z.£'292 €L0°LL 662'StZ 6£0°9€
L6¥'602 £88'0/2 (z19'91) S6v°282 16€°292 €40°L) ¥82'5¥2 8¢l'sz
- L (z19'ol) €19°91L €19°91L SSZ'v 8GECL -
991 0zz - 0zz 0zz 0z 00z -
6v7'c 89Z'y - 892t 892y 89% 008‘€ -
602°€2 ¥56°/2 - ¥56°/2 0522 oge’s 0022 vy
- See'L - Gee'L - - - See'L
199281 s0L‘1eT - S0L°LET 9z.L'€1Z 000°6 92,902 6.E°LL
Pre‘L 106 (602°1) 916°0L Gl - Gl 106°0L
62 €9 - €9 Gl - Gl 8y
129 €9/ - €9/ - - - €9/
o1} 108 (602°1) 910 - - - 910
sl 0€S - 0€S - - - 0€S
1G Y0l - 0L - - - Y0l
8 14 - ¥ - - - 14
6 9 - 9 - - - 9
826'S $  0ev'L $ - 0er'L - $ - - $  0ev'L $
8102 6102 [T [ejoL spung puog uonnjosay uonnjosay spung
diysisumoswoH |ejsuss) 002 |eleuds) v661 Bunesado
|ejol spun4 puog diySJoumMoawoH Kouaby

(spuesnoy] uj)

810¢ ANV 6102 ‘0 INNF
NOILISOd L3N 40 SIN3INTLVLS ONINIGINOD
AON3IOV IDNVNI4d ONISNOH V1OMVA HLHON

$90IN0S8I JO SMOPINO palIsjep [0l

JUSWINIISUI SAIJEALISP [BlOUBUlH
9340 - Mopno pauseq
uoisuad - moyIno pausaq

S32UNOSIAY 40 SMOT4LNO d3NJ343a

sjesse [B10|
S)J8SSE JUaLINOUOU [BJO]

S}8SSE JUBLINOUOU Pa)oLIsal [BJ0]
SJUBWISaAU|

uojuod JuBLIND JO JoU ‘B|geAledal SUBOT

A3L01-H1S3Y - SLASSY LINFHHNONON

S}OSSE JUaLINJUOU PajoM}salun [Bjo
jou ‘uswdinbg
Jou ‘wnjwalid aseslas 908
A3LOI-ELSTENN - SLISSY INFHHNONON

S}9SSE JUBLIND [BJ0]

S}O9SSE JUBLND Pajou}sal [ejo|
BY10
SUEIHEE
sueo
1s810)U|
8|geAl@o8l sueo| Jo uojuod Jusiny
S8|eAIe09Y
SJUBWISBAU|
sjus|eAinbe yseo pue ysen
d3LOM-FLS3aY - SLIASSV INIFHHNO

S}9SSE JuauNd pajou}saIun [Bjo]
sasuadxa predald
wnjwaid asesjal 90nas Jo uolpod juaund
BYio
dnH wo4 ang
sjuaw)sany|
sueo
JECTEMV]
sa|qenleoay
salouaby 9)e1s woy ang
sjuajeninba yseo pue ysed
A3LOM-LSTINN - SLISSY INTFHHND
sl3ssv



IO@I

leL'esl  $ wye'eel $ - $ vhe'sel $  €16'e8l 80s'8l $ SOv'S9L $  Leglk  $
822'6 SLELL - 8LE‘LL - - - SLELL
z68°CLL cL6'esl - c16'csl c16'csl 80581 GoP'sol -

L <l - €l - - - el

LGPl gee - see - - - Gee

6e2't - - - - - - -

i L - L - - - L

861 143 - vze - - - ¥ze
105°100°} 016°ZLE"L (Lzg'LL) Leeioee’t 826'€6Z'L ves‘L2L ¥6€'991 "L £0¥'9e
195656 122'682'L - 122'682°L Lzze'L €601 0/8°LLL'L 0L0'8L
181'8Y6 995°22Z') - 996°22Z°1 ale'elLz’l €601 G/6'C0L') 052'6
(6€2'1) 988°L - 988, 988, - 988°L -

16 061 - 061 - - - 061

906°¢ 000% - 000y - - - 000%
69€'Y oP'y - £oP'y - - - coP'y

8¢ 6 - 6 6 - 6 -

4 101 - 101 - - - 101
0v6°SY 682'c. (L2sLL) 0LL‘LB VEA] €618l Y25 £6£°8)

[ che - eve - - - eve
9eL'zl L6yl - L6 vl - - - L6 vl
05921 1£€°91 - 1€€'91 elerAl] ¥59°L 109'pL Z8

¥20°0Z 0€8'6¢ - 0£8°6¢ 0£8°6¢ 9v0°z ¥81°L€ -

622 162 - 1€2 - - - 1€2

£e8 0611 (1zgLL) Le'el 1659l g 850 09/

- 18 - 18 18 - 18 -

i Ll - Ll - - - Ll

<l $ €l $ - $ €l $ - - $ - $ ¢l $

810z 6102 uoneulwI|3 [eol spun4 uonnjosey uonnjosey spun4
puog |elaus9) 6002 |elaus9) 661 mc_«m\_mao
|ejoL diysioumoawoH spun4 puog diysiaumoawoH Aouaby

d3NNILNOD - NOILISOd L3N 40 SIN3INTLVLS ONINIFGINOD

(spuesnoy] uj)

810C ANV 6102 ‘0¢ INNF

AON3IOV IDNVNI4d ONISNOH V1OMVA HLHON

uonysod jou [ejol

pajousaiun

80IISS Jg8p 0} PajouLIsay

sjesse |ended ul pajseau|
NOILISOd 13N

$90IN0S8I JO SMOUI PaLIBap [e10]

JUSWINIISUI SAIJEALISP [BIOUBUIS
g3d0 - Mopul pausieq
uoisuad - mojul pausjeq
S324N0S3Y 40 SMOT4ANI d3y¥343a

saljliqel| [ejoL
Sa1}I|Igel| JUaLINouoU [ejo]

uojpod jJuaund Jo Jou ‘s|qeled spuog

JUSLINIISUI SAIJRALISP [BIOUBUIH

Ayngel g3do 1N

Aynge) uoisuad j1oN

90UBADE Ul PaAI9dal Spuny juels)

Sd| 0} 8np 8jegey

uojpod JuauND Jo Jou ‘seousasge pajesuadwo)
SALTGVIT LNIHSHNONON

S

qgel| JuaLno [ejol

9OUBADE Ul PBAISDSI SpUNy juelo)
isnJj ul pjgy spung
1S8I8)Ul PpanIooy
a|geAed spuoq jo uoipod juauiny
s9oUasge pajesuadwod jo uoluod jusund
Byio
S¥| 0] @np 8jegal Jo uoiuod Juaun)
sejouaby 9)e)s 0} anQ
anH o1 enQg

SALTGVIT LNIHEND

salLmavii



I—x@l

LeL'esl $ vve'sel $ - $ Pvbz'sel $ €lLe'esl $ 80G'8L $ sov'salL $ LeeLl $
- - - - (1e) (2) (¥2) L€
ozl'ell LeL'est - LeL'est 268°'€LL 918'0L 9/0°/S1 6€2'6
€5.°C - - - - - - -
€€'0LL LeL'est - LeL'est 268°'€LL 918'0L 9/0°/S1 6€2'6
S00°0L €Lz - €Lzl 2500l 669°L €5€'8 190°C
(8¢€) (8¢€) - (8¢) - - - (8¢€)
- 0sL - (0] - - - 0SL
ev0'0L 10021 - 10021 25001 669°'L £6€'8 616
801 £9% - €9y - - - £9¥
(€z8'vlL) (898'v1) - (898'v1) - - - (898'71)
801 L9 - L9¥ - - - L9t
- 4 - 4 - - - 4
€28Vl 898'vL - 808Vl - - - 898l
G€6'6 8€S°LL - 8€S‘LL 2so'oL 669°L €5¢€'8 98Y'L
506'62 £18'2€ (z62°'9) SeL'vy Sll'oe LIy’ 869'2¢ 0z0'8
14 S - S - - - S
4 €C - €C - - - 4
089 9€9 - 9€9 - - - 9€9
685°C 0.G' - 0.G°€ - - - 0.6
2eY'S 6129 (z62°9) L1521 8/6'8 6179 62¢'8 £€6'¢
e Lee - LeT - - - %4
G€0'0Z 6Sl'.LC - 6512 le1'le 89/°C 69€'vC [44
0¥8'6€ 18€'6Y (262'9) €19'GS 91°9v 9lLL's 1G0‘LYy 90S'6
¥56°C vLL'E (z62'9) 90%'6 - - - 901’6
Zz8l 6L - 6. 6L - 6L -
2Ll 09t's - 09%'G 09%'G 60€ LGL'S -
2€6'EE $ s8zLovr $ - $ 8zzor $ 8z9'Ov $ 108'% $ 128'ce $ 0oL $
8L0c 6102 uoneulwl g lejoL spun4 puog uonnjosay uonpn|osay spund
n__cm‘_wc>>O®EOI |ei1suas) 6002 |elaues) 661 mc_am;_wmo
|ejol spund puog diysioaumoswoH Aousby

810C ANV 6102 ‘0€ ANNI A3IANT SHVIA IHL Y04

(spuesnoy] uj)

¥V3A 40 AN3 ‘NOILISOd 13N TVLOL

(LNO) NI ¥34SNVHL

Q3LVLSTY "HVIA 40 ONINNIDIE ‘NOILISOd L3N TV.LOL
€¢ ALON - LINJWLSNrav aold3d J0ldd

d3140d3d ATSNOINTHd SV
"¥v3A 40 ONINNIDIE ‘NOILISOd L3N TVLOL

NOILISOd L3N NI 3ONVHO

UOISSIWWOY [eU}SNpu| 0} Jajsuel|
S9OINI9S UBWNY JO Juswpedad N Woly Jajsuel]

SY3I4SNVHL

SH3I4SNVHL 340439 S1ISSV NI 3ONVHO

(sasuadxa) senuanai Bupesadouou |ejo

syuelb |esopa
WODUI JUSW}SaAU|
sjuelb [eiopaj-UoN
sjuelb [eispa

(S3SNIdXT) INNIATY ONILVHIJONON

JNOONI ONILYH3dO

sosuadxa |ejo|
uoneloaidaq
asuadxa g3d40
asuadxa uoisuad
sjyauaq pue saleles

sosuadxa

Burjesado pue aanesnsiuIWpY

sjuesb Aousby
asuadxa }saialu|
S3ISNIAXE ONILYHEIHO

senuanal [ejo]
Bawoou| 984

SJUBWISanUl JO dles uo ule9)

BWOoOUI Juswi}saAu|

awooul ysaajul abebuop

S3INNIATYL ONILYH3IdO

NOILISOd L3N ANN4 NI SIONVHO ANV SASNIAXT ‘'STINNIATY 40 SININILVLS ONINIGINOD

AJNIOV 3IONVNI4d ONISNOH V.1OMVA HLYON



IN@I

90G°0.L1 200'9/2 - 200'9.2 010292 (965'12) 909882 766'8 sennioe Buioueuy [eydesuou
(doy pasn) Aq papwnold yseo joN
- - - - ley - ley (1ep) (o) uy Jaysuesy punpayy|
(8¢) (8¢) - (8¢) - - - (8¢) UOISSIWLIOY) [EL}SNPU| 0} SIajSuel|
- 051 051 0S) S9OIUSG UeWNH wWol Jajsuel]
(e28'v1) (898'71) - (898'%1) - - - (898'%1) sjuelb |esapay Jo juswifed
€28yl 8987 - 8987 - - - 8987 s)uelb [eJepa) WOl Speadoid
- 14 14 14 Sjuelb |esapaj-uou Woy spasdold
(006'81) (¥1¥'€2) - (pL¥'€2) (ee5'e2) (1oL'g) (zev'oe) 65 spuog pue sueoj uo pled jsaisu|
¥90'91€ 220'68¢ - 220'68¢ 7L1'6.8 - 2L1'618 052'6 90UBNSS| PUOq WOY SPasoold
860'2¢ £6e'/¢ - £€6¢'/¢ - - - £€6¢'/¢ gTH4 / ANG woy sbuimoliog Ueo| Woy spesoold
(0z9'921) (099'68) - (099°68) (099°68) (s6'g1) (S91'12) - a|qeed spuoq uo sjuswihed fedioutid
(8e0'z¢) (ege'L8) - (ege'28) - - - (ege'28) g1H4 / ANg Woy ueoj uo sjuswihed [ediould
SALAILOY
ONIONVNIH TVLIdYONON
(ze8'v6) (geg'261) - (geg°261) (119'102) 06202 (19e'z22) 9Gz'y seioe Buessdo
(4o} pasn) Aq papwnoud yseo JoN
(185'¢) (g95°¢) - (595°¢) - - - (g95°¢) soakojdws 0} sjuswAed
(9z0'81) (1ez'zl) Gzl (9¥6'62) (010'52) (yee'e) (929'12) (9¢6'h) J8yio
(1¥£'962) (€22'69€) - (€2.'69¢€) (¥51'pee) - (¥S1'pee) (69g°cE) saseyoind ueo| abebuopy
(912) (ss1) - (ss1) - - - (ss1) solouabe aje)g
slapioid 8o1es 0} sjuswAed
(¢92) (609) - (609) - - - (609) sjuelb jo uswAed
(@ 96¢ - 96¢ - - - 96¢ 9OUBADE Ul P93 SPUN JUEJS)
- - - - (spz'se) - (spz'se) Gve'se soles pue seseyoind ueo| sebebuow punpaju|
%55'1e 0LL'se - 0Ll'se 0Ll'se - 0LL'se - 9|qeAI998) SUEO] JO B[es WOy spasdold
1G0'96L ¢ ziv'e9L $ (ggLLL) § €118 889°/91 $ ¥80vC $  w0o'er $ evrel SIeWwojsnd wioy sydiposy
SIILIAILOY ONILYYIHO
8102 6102 uoleuw|3 [ejoL spun4 puog uopnjosey  uonNjosay spung
QEQ@ESO@EOI |elsues) g00¢  [essud9) 661 mcz&mao
[eloL spun4 puog diysiaumoawoy Kouaby

(spuesnoy] ui)
8102 ANV 6102 ‘0€ ANNI A3AN3T SHV3IA IHL HOA
SMOT4 HSVYD 40 SININTLVLS ONINIGINOD
AJNIOV FIONVNI4d ONISNOH VLOMVYA HLYON



Imml

Ges'ssl  $  geg'eee - $ geg'eez $ 9eLele $ 0006 92.'v02 608'vC

199281 soL'lee - G0LLET 9zL'elT 000'6 92.'v02 6.€'1)

876G $ oev'L - $ oev', 0§ - $ - - ([

Ges'ssl  $  geg'eee - $ geg'eez $ 9zLele $ 0006 92.'v0C 608'vC

0228zl 665881 - G6S'881L 1€G'0LL yLL'EL 118961 #9081

G/€'09 066y - 066y g6l ey (h1L'y) 606°Ly Gy.'9

(662'G1) (00.'82) - (00.'82) (¥02'22) (898°¢) (9ee'sl) (961'9)

el €6 - £G¢ - - - €6

118'e G50'y - GG0'y 6cc') - 622’} 978'C

(c85'61) (801'ce) - (80L'cg) (eev'er) (898'¢) (G9G'61) (529')

- $ () - $ () $ - $ - - (2)

8102 6102 uoneulwi|3 [ejoL spun4 puog uoinjosay uoinjosay spung
diysioumosWo  [elsuds) GO0z [BJBUSS) 1661 Bunesado

[e10L spun4 puog diysIaumoawoH Kouaby

810C ANV 6102 ‘0€ IANNI AIANIT SHVIA IHL HOA
A3NNILNOD - SMOT1d HSVO 40 SINIW3LVLS ONINIGNOD
AON3IOV IDNVNI4d ONISNOH V1OMVA HLHON

(spuesnoy] ui)

pa)ouIsay - sjuajeainby ysen pue ysen
pajouIsalun - sjusjeainb3 ysen pue ysen

dv3A 40 AN3 LV
SINIFTVAINDI HSVYI ANV HSYO

dV3A 40 ONINNIO3G 1Y
SINIFTVAINDI HSVYI ANV HSYO

SINFIVAINDF HSYO ANV
HSYO NI 3ONVHO 13N

salnijoe Buisenul
(4oy pasn) Aq papwnoud yseo joN
SJUBLUISBAUI WO Paneoal 1salalu|
SJUBLLISBAUI JO B[es WOy Spesdold
SJUBWISaAUI JO BSeyaInd
S3ILIANILOY ONILSIANI

wawdinbs Jo aseyaing

S3ILINLOY ONIONVYNIS
d3LV13d ANV TVLIdYO



I.V@I

- $ - $ - $ - $ 1€ $ 2 $ ) $ sueo| paBpald ypm pajeroosse sisjsuel]
- $ - $ - $ - $ €0e'y $ - $ €0e'v $ (coe'y) § slejsuel) Juswisany|
- $ - $ - $ - $ (g9) $ - $  (g9) $ g5 $ SI9JSUBl} aNfeA Jied
(88¢) $ 6ev $ - $ 6ep $ P¥8e $ 1g $ eq¢e $ &S $ SJUBLWIJSBAUI JO BNEA Jley Ul (9Sesloap) asealou|
1S8INSO[JSIP YSeo-UoN
(zeg'v6) $ (ssez6L) $ - $  (sse'z6L) $ (119°102) $ o0ss0z $ (19e'Tze) $  9sC' $ sannoe bupesedo
(4oy pasn) Aq papwnoud yseo 1aN
() 96¢ - 96¢ - - - 96¢ 95UBAPE Ul PaAladal Spuny JuelS)
1€9°1 6 - 6 - - - 6 Ayigel| uoisuad JoN
(912) ¥08°C - ¥08'C - - - ¥08°Z snJ3 Ul pjgy spung
oL (9) - (9) - - - (9) seoussqe pejesuadwo)
G8Z'6G (veL'0L) - (veL'0L) (gog'01) (r16°L) (168°8) 1L SEITe[=PETTe)
(v9) 1S - 1S 1S - LS - SY| 0} anp sjegey
[ [ - e - - - [ salousby 9jels 0} anQg
(1) (1) - (1) - - - (1) anH o1 eng
(8¥0°'02}) (ez12€2) - (ez1'2€2) (£08°1€2) zLT'SL (620°242) (91€) 8|qeAi908) Sueo
(z69) (518) - (518) (618) 1e (0s8) 14 9|qeAI908] JsaIsUI UBOT
1€ (v€) - (¥€) (1) - (1) (61) sasuadxe piedald
(221'6S) eeLLL - eeLLL S0zZ'0l G69°c 0169 826 $8|qenvo8l Jayi0
(8eg°1) (152°2) - (152°2) - - - (152°2) wniwaid 8sesjes 9ONBS
(2) € - € - - - € sajousby aje}s woy eng
(12) (8€) - (82¢£) - - - (828) dnH woy eng
:ul sebueyd o0} anp SMoy YSed uo 10ay3
vl (€) - (€ - - - (€) 9340 - smoyul pausjeg
(z9) 9zl - 9zl - - - 9zl uoisuad - smopui pausjeq
(61) () - (4] - - - () g93d0 - mopino pausjeg
(e81°1) e - e - - - e uoisuad - mopino pausjeq
:ul sabueyd 0} anp SMol YSeD U0 10843
vl 90122 - 90122 ¥80°/2 €5.°C Lee'vT 22 saljnoe Jayjo o} ssuadxe
}SaJajul JO uoljealyisse|oay
- (¥8¢) - (¥8¢) (¥8¢) (1€) (es¢e) - SJUSWISAAUL JO BN|EA JIB} Ul 9SB8109p (9SB8I0U])
616 8%0°L - 80'l - - - 8v0‘L swnjwald ases|a) 908
(¥69'7) (e21'9) - (e21°G) (e21°9) (g52) (8LY'Y) - swnjwaid pue sjunodsip anssi [eulbuo
uoljeziyowy
¥ S - S - - - S uoneloaidaq
:sannoe Bunesedo woy yseo jau 0}
awoou| Buijesado aj1ou0dal 0} sjuswisnipy
GEB'6 $ 8esLL 0§ - $ 8eS'lL $  zZsool $ 6691 $ ese'8 $ 98yl $ (ssoy) swoout Buneledo
SAILIALLOY ONLLYHIJO (404 a3sn) Ad
a3AINOYd HSYO L3N OL IWOONI
ONILYYIdO 40 NOLLYITIONOOIY
8102 6102 uoneuiwi|3 [eyo] spund puog uonnjosay uonn|osay spung
diysJoumoswo  [esauas) g00Z  [BJBUSD) Y661 Bunelsado
lelol spun4 puog diysIiaumoawioH AKouaby

(spuesnoy] ui)
8102 ANV 6102 ‘0€ ANNI A3AN3T SHV3IA IHL HOA
A3INNILNOD - SMOT4 HSVYOD 40 SIN3INT1V1S ONINIGINOD
AJNIOV FIONVNI4d ONISNOH VLOMVYA HLYON



Imml

- 018'9L 626'€0L 0812 006°cL 9£9'L2 Tre'6s 129'606 sjassy JaN/Anb3 pue sapijiqery jejoL 009
- SyL'El 196001 vov'el 658l (117874 82085 L11'€06 sjessy JaN/Minb3 [ejoL €16
- 8LL0L 180'86 850°L1 658°Cl 102°02 906'95 91106 UoIISOd JeN perouisaiun  ¥ZLg
- 120'€ v.8°C Me'Z - 6EY'E AN | UOISOd JoN PajouIsey  tLLG
- - - - - - - - panlesay aduejeg pund 2609
- - - - - - - - sjessy [eydeD Ul Jusuisenu| 18N 7'80G
- - - - - - - - [eyded penquuod [eloL 80§
- S90'c 896'C 0012 Iy 96v'c yie'l $05°2 sapliqer] [BJoL  00€
) ) . . . . . - Sol)I|Iqel] JUSLINDUON |BJ0L  (0G€
- S90'c 896'C 002 14 96Y'c 7121 052 sapiliqerjuaung [ejol 0L
- 120'€ 18T WeT - 6eY'e 74N b sweiboid VHd ANH - 8lqeded sunoddy  |eg
- 8¢ 6 s 14 15 26 €05'2 sheq 06 => o|qehed sunoddy  z1¢
- - - - - - - - yelpinQ queg L1
Ayinb3 pue sapijiqer
- 018'9L 626'€0L v08°1Z 006°c} 9£9°12 [ A 129606 S)assy [eJoL 061
- - - - - - - - S}essy Juaund-uoN [ejoL 08
- - - - - - - - uoperaidag 091
PajeINWNodY Jo JaN ‘s}essy paxid [ejoL
- 018'9L 626'€0L v08°12 006‘cl 9£9'L7 Te'es 129'506 sjossy Juaun) [eJoL  0Gl
- 65 i 8 9 88 el 268'cl SJossy Jayio pue sesusdx3 prederd  zyl
- - - - 4344 - - 118°€S) 10} SEOUBMO|[B JO JaU ‘SB|qBAIDD3Y [Bj0L  (0Z)
- - - - - - - - JBYJO - SIUN022Y [NJIgno( Joj eduemollyY  Z2'9zZL
- - - - - - - - sjuay BuijemQ - SJUN02JY [NJgnoQ Joj dOUBMOIY  |'9Z)
- - - - - - - - SNOBUE.||9ISI| - 9|qBAID8Y SIUN0IDY [erd
- - - - zee'e - - 118'€S) sjoafoid Jeyl0 ANH - 8IGeAg08y SIUNoddY 72l
- 16291 78L'C0L 0zLle v0S‘LL 8s‘Le 66065 868°LEL ysep |eyoL 00
- 120'€ v.8'C WE'T - 6EY'E 7AN! - Ajiigey jueund jo JuswiAed Joj pajoysey - ysed Gl
- - - - - - - b pajouisey JeYO - Ysed ¢l
- veLEl 806°004 v.€'6L P05'L) 60172 1161G 168°1€L pajouyselun - ysed L1
sjassy
60004 L06AN 8000MINL06AN 90004INL06AN S0004INIL0GAN 70004INLO6AN £0004NL06AN 1000XINLO6AN sal|lwey uonduasaqg # way|
jeljiqeyay jelliqeyay jeyqeyay jeynqeyay Jeyqeyay jeNqeyay de)llIqeyay  dWodU| JOMOT J0} aur
?)elapo ?)jesapo ?)esapoN ?)elapoN ?)elapoN )eIBPOI d)eIBPOI BuisnoH |ejuay

g uonoag weiboid g uonoag welboid g uondag weibold g uonoag weiboid g uonoag weibold g uondag weiboid g uonoag weiboid
aouejsissy BuisnoH aouejsissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy BuisnoH aouejsissy BuisnoH aosue)sissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy Buisnoy

awoou| 19Mo

awoou| 1aMo

awoou| Jamo

awoou| Jamo awoou| Jamo

6102 ‘0€ ANNC d3ANT YVIA IHL HOA

awoou| Jamo]

awoou| Jamo]

- sjuswajddng
jusy

JT1NA3HOS V1vAad TVIONVNIH 8 NOILO3S
- INJINJO13A3A NvadN ANV ONISNOH
AJNIOV 3IONVNI4d ONISNOH V.1OMVA HLYON



I@@I

- ovl 1224 €8l 41 Ll Gle €€9°C¢ pases SYJUo Jun Jo JsquinN - 0lZLL

- vyl 09¢ Y02 961 9Lz 8Yve €€9°C¢ 8|qe|lery SYJuoN Wun - 00Zh L

- 02z'19 9991 8876l 1896 €008 985222 8€8'LyeLL 9|qe|leAy suojnqiyuo) |enuuy |ejol 09111

- 0zeTL 17078 690y 288'GlL €92'0C L70'LL 6E7'9L6°C anesay welfoid OOV ‘enesey Aousbunuod  0GLLL

- - - - - - - - SUIUOIN SAjoM] UBY} SSB] JO polied B 0} OFLLL
8|qeolddy suonnquiuoy [ENUUY WNWIXe}\ 8jeloid

- 0068 GE9'ZEL 6LY'SLL 668°08 0v.'€9 S¥S0le 66€°1L9'7) 00V 0gLLL
Jad) swWWOoD SUOHNQUIUOY [eNUUY WNWIXE

(ge6'9y) - - - ) @ - - SI0U3 JO UONYALOD  OFOLL
pue siajsuel] Aunb3 ‘syuswisnlpy pousad Joud

GE6'OY vre'rL ¥56 201 €65°02 ceL'yl 1€€'62 G56'6S ¥.8'918 Aynb3 BuuuiBeg 001 L

- - - - - - - - spun4 asudiajug - sjuswAed [ediound 1980 0Z0L1
UOJ}eWIOJU| JUNOIIY OWAN

- (662) (¢66°1) (6211 (298) (s6L1) (2261 £2'95 sasuadx3 (1apun) 19A0 00001
anuaAay BunesadQ jo (Aouaioyaq) ssaaxg

- - - - - - - - (sasn) seainog Buioueul4 J8YlO [BI0L  00L0L

- G66°19 65701 81v'S6 2€6°19 6.S'cy 16€'661 (4443 44" sasuadx3 |ejoL 00006

- 26€°0S GGL'GL 210'6. GOE ‘6 8/1'9¢ cle'lel eve'0eL'LL sjuewAhed souejsissy BuISNoH  00€.6

- €656y 29L'eL €88°LL €058y €867 98¢°6Z1 985°92L°11 sasuadx3 0006
BuneisadQ JaA0 anuanay BunesadQ ssaaxg

- €09°LL 0062 9ey'9lL 19521 Lov'LL 8€0'82 6.L'60L sesuadx3g bugesado 18301 00696

- L9z'e 2518 029t €€5'e 068'Y 188°L €9¢€'92) J8yl0 00616

- (¥4 €S 62 €C 4% G 25L'6L [onell 00816

- €00°} 105 lev'l 980°L ¥0S°} ver'e 91€'%9 asuadx3 80O 00916

- 20eC ¥SL'S 19z'e €617°C €SY'e 295'S YEZ'€GL SAlessIUIWPY - uolNqUuoY Jysusg svkoidws 00516

- 90l 14 0S1L vl 86l ei*14 9/G'6 $994 Bunipny 00216

- 0L6'v vlz'e) G569 8Le's Y9€'L Gog'}L 8EG°0VE Soleles anensiuiwpyY - 00LL6
sasuadxg

- 96119 99201 61E'V6 0019 y8¢'Ty ¥Zy'LSL G9¢'98¥'Cl 9NUBAZY |ejoL 00L

- € 8 S € S 8 o'l PojoU}saY - SWODU| JuswissAul - 00022

- 6¢ 86 95 954 65 S6 - pajou}saIun - swoduy| Juswysaaul - 001 L2

- ¥S1°19 099°20L 86276 ¥20°19 0ze‘Ty Lce'LS) €2€'587'Cl sjuei BunessdO YHd ANH 0090/

- - - - - - - - anuanay Jueus] [BI0] 0050/
anuanay

60004INL06AN 8000INL06AN 90004INL06AN G000 L06AN 000N L06AN €000MINL06AN L000MINL06AN sal|lwey uondussag # way|

jejljiqeyay jejljiqeyay jejljiqeyay jejljiqeyay jejljiqeyay jeylliqeyay sjejjiqeyay awoou| JamoT 1oy aun

ajesapop ajelapop ajelapoly ajelapoy ajelapoly ajesapo ajesapo Buisnoy |ejuay

g uonoas weiboid g uopoag weiboid g uonoag weiboid g uondag welboid g uondag weiboid g uodag weiboid g uoidag weiboid
aouejsissy BuisnoH aouejsissy BuisnoH aouejsissy Buisnoy aouejsissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy BuisnoH aosuejsissy BuisnoHy

awoou| Jamo|

awoou| Jamo

awoou| JamoT

awoou| JamoT awoou| JamoT

6102 ‘0€ ANNr d3ANT YVIA IHL HOA

aWoou| JamoT]

awoou| Jamo]

- sjuawajddng
uay

A3NNILNOD - T1NA3IHOS V1vA TVIONVNI4 8 NOILO3S
- INJINJO13AIA NvadN ANV ONISNOH
AJNIOV 3IONVNI4d ONISNOH V.1OMVA HLYON



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
ADJUSTED NET WORTH CALCULATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

A. Adjusted net worth calculation

Stockholder's equity per statement of financial

condition at end of reporting period $ 195,244

Less:

ltemized unacceptable assets

1. Due from state agencies $ (6)

2. $ -

3. $ -

Total unacceptable assets $ (6)
Adjusted net worth $ 195,238

B. Required net worth calculation

Unpaid principal balance of securities outstanding
(Note: number of pools = 31) $ 183,188

Plus:

Outstanding balance of commitment authority

issued and requested $ 52,448
Total outstanding portfolio and authority $ 235,636
Required net worth $ 1,535

C. Excess (deficit) net worth
(Adjusted net worth - required net worth) $ 193,703
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
INSURANCE COVERAGE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Identification of affiliated Ginnie Mae issuers

Affiliated Ginnie Mae issuers
(Issuer name and Ginnie Mae issuer identification code) None

Affiliated issuers on same insurance policies
(Issuer name and Ginnie Mae issuer identification number) None

Required insurance calculation

Servicing portfolio

Ginnie Mae $ 183,188
Fannie Mae -
Freddie Mac -
Conventional (other) 991,593
Total servicing portfolio 1,174,781
Required fidelity bond coverage 1,700
Required mortgage servicing errors and omissions coverage 1,700

. Verification of insurance coverage

Fidelity bond coverage at end of reporting period 2,000

Mortgage servicing errors and omissions coverage at end
of reporting period 2,000

Excess (deficit) insurance coverage

Fidelity bond coverage 300
Required servicing errors and omissions coverage 300

Ginnie Mae loss payable endorsement

Fidelity bond coverage Yes

Mortgage servicing errors and omissions coverage Yes

- 68 -



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
CAPITAL REQUIREMENT CALCULATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

A. Capital requirement for depository institutions

Tier 1 capital
Total capital

Risk-based assets
Total assets

Tier 1 capital / total assets
Tier 1 capital / risk-based assets
Total capital / risk-based assets

5% of tier 1 capital / total assets
6% of tier 1 capital / risk-based assets
10% of total capital / risk-based assets

B. Capital requirement for nodepository institutions

Total adjusted net worth
Total assets

Total adjusted net worth / total assets

- 069 -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
- %
- %
- %
Meets
$ - N/A
3 - N/A
3 - N/A
$ 195,238
$1,498,475
Meets
13.03% yes




NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
LIQUID ASSET REQUIREMENT CALCULATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

A. Liquid asset calculation

Required net worth (from adjusted

net worth calculation, page 67) 3 1,535
Acceptable liquid assets
1. Cash and cash equivalents $ 238,535
Total liquid assets $ 238,535

B. Required liquid asset

Meets
Requirement?

Excess (deficit) liquid
(Total liquid assets / required net worth) 15540% yes
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Federal Pass- Passed
CFDA Through Through to
Federal Grantor/Federal Agency Number Identifier Subrecipients Expenditures
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Federal Housing Commission Division
Mortgage Insurance - Homes 14.117 $ - $ 145,144,560
Rent Supplements - Rental Housing for

Lower Income Families 14.149 - 12,430,122
Housing Counseling Assistance Program 14.169 59,299 59,299
Housing Trust Fund 14.275 - 2,731,263
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program -

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation /

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster 14.856 A - 527,064
Community Development Block Grants 14.228 337,660
Passed through City of Minot:

Community Development Block Grant -

National Disaster Resilience Competition / B-13-
CDBG-Disaster Recover Grants Cluster 14.269 B MS-38-002 - 10,504
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 59,299 161,240,473
Department of Veterans Affairs
Veterans Benefits Administration Division
Veterans Housing -
Guaranteed and Insured Loans 64.114 - 14,661,491
TOTAL $ 59,299 $175,901,963

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “schedule”) includes the
federal award activity of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations
of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, change in net position, or cash flows of North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency.

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
limited as to reimbursement. North Dakota Housing Finance Agency has not elected to use the
10-percent de minimis cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 LOAN GUARANTEES AND INSURANCE

The following is the balance of federal loan guarantees and insurance outstanding for the loan
programs which appear on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as of June 30, 2019.

Federal

CFDA 6/30/19
Federal Program Number Balance
Mortgage Insurance - Homes 14117 $ 676,558,258
Veterans Housing - Guaranteed and Insured Loans 64.114 60,372,997
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BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Governor Doug Burgum
The Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the business-type
activities of the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, a department of the State of North
Dakota, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

toudy Mary

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

October 14, 2019
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BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Governor Doug Burgum
The Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota
Bismarck, North Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of North Dakota Housing
Finance Agency’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about North Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of North
Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered North
Dakota Housing Finance Agency’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North Dakota Housing
Finance Agency’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

toudy Mol

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

October 14, 2019
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X__ none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X __ no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X__ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
Required to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X __ no

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.117 Mortgage Insurance - Homes

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $922,722

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X yes no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
There are no findings which are required to be reported under this section.
Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no findings which are required to be reported under this section.
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BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S COMMENTS REQUESTED BY
THE LEGISLATIVE AUDIT AND FISCAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

Governor Doug Burgum
The Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota
Bismarck, North Dakota

The Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee require that certain items be addressed by
independent certified public accountants performing audits of state agencies. These items and
our responses are as follows:

Audit Report Communications:

1.

What type of opinion was issued on the financial statements?
Unmodified opinion.

Was there compliance with statues, laws, rules, regulations under which the agency was
created and is functioning?

Yes - A review was made of Chapter 54-17 and other pertinent chapters of the North
Dakota Century Code and we felt the Agency operated within the statutes, laws, rules
and regulations under which it was created.

Was internal control adequate and functioning effectively?

Yes.

Were there any indications of lack of efficiency in financial operations and management
of the Agency?

No.
Was action taken on prior audit findings and recommendations?
There were no prior year findings.

Was a management letter issued? If so, provide a summary below, including any
recommendations and the management responses.

No.
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Audit Committee Communications:

7.

10.

11.

Identify any significant changes in accounting policies, any management conflicts of
interest, any contingent liabilities, or any significant unusual transactions.

As described in Note 23 to the financial statements, North Dakota Housing Finance
Agency changed accounting principles related to their method of accounting for bond
premiums and discounts.

Identify any significant accounting estimates, the process used by management to
formulate the accounting estimates, and the basis for the auditor’s conclusions regarding
the reasonableness of these estimates.

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Fair value of investments — Management’s estimate of investments is based on the
exchange value of investments between two willing parties. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of investments in determining
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Fair value of financial derivative instruments — Management’s estimate of the fair value
of financial derivative instruments is based on the zero-coupon method and the
discounted cash flow method. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the fair value of the instruments in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Net pension liability — Management’'s estimate of its actuarially calculated pension
liability is based on several factors including but not limited to, anticipated investment
return rate, retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increase, and
form of annuity payment upon retirement. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to determine future liabilities in determining that they are reasonable
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Net OPEB liability — Management’s estimate of its actuarially calculated OPEB liability is
based on several factors including but not limited to, anticipated investment return rate,
retirement age for active employees, and life expectancy. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to determine future liabilities in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Identify any significant audit adjustments.

None.

Identify any disagreements with management, whether or not resolved to the auditor's
satisfaction, relating to financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be
significant to the financial statements.

None.

Identify any significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit.

None.
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12. Identify any major issues discussed with management prior to retention.
None.

13. Identify any management consultations with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters.

None.

14. Identify any high-risk information technology systems critical to the operations based on
the auditor’s overall assessment of the importance of the system to the Agency and its
mission or whether any exceptions identified in the six audit report questions addressed
above are directly related to the operations of an information technology system.

Housing and Development Software, Dynamic Loan System, Loan Tracking and the
general ledger and accounting system developed by the Agency are considered to be
significant information technology systems critical to operation of the Agency. We would
not consider these to be high risk based upon our inspection and understanding of the
Agency’s system of internal control over these significant information technology
systems.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the North Dakota Industrial
Commission, Legislative Assembly, Advisory Board, management, others within the entity, and
the federal awarding and pass-through agencies and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

toudy Marl3

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

October 14, 2019
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BradyMartz

October 14, 2019

Governor Doug Burgum
The Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency, a department of the State of North Dakota, for the year ended June
30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you
dated June 26, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by North Dakota Housing Finance Agency are described in
Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2019, with the exception of accounting
for bond premiums and discounts, as described in note 23 to the financial statements. We noted
no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Fair value of investments — Management’s estimate of investments is based on the
exchange value of investments between two willing parties. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of investments in determining
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Fair value of financial derivative instruments — Management’s estimate of the fair value
of financial derivative instruments is based on the zero-coupon method and the
discounted cash flow method. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the fair value of the instruments in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Net pension liability — Management's estimate of its actuarially calculated pension
liability is based on several factors including but not limited to, anticipated investment
return rate, retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increase, and
form of annuity payment upon retirement. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to determine future liabilities in determining that they are reasonable
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Net OPEB liability — Management’s estimate of its actuarially calculated OPEB liability is
based on several factors including but not limited to, anticipated investment return rate,
retirement age for active employees, and life expectancy. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to determine future liabilities in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. There were no such misstatements noted.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated October 14, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
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determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’'s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, schedule
of employer's share of net pension liability, schedule of employer contributions — pension,
employer’s share of net OPEB liability, and schedule of employer contributions - OPEB, which
are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the combining statement of net position, combining statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, combining statement of cash flows,
Housing and Urban Development — Section 8 Financial Data Schedule, adjusted net worth
calculation, insurance coverage schedule, capital requirement calculation, liquid asset
requirement calculation, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, notes to the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and comments requested by the Legislative Audit and Fiscal
Review Committee, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to
the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the North Dakota Industrial Commission,
Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee, Advisory Board and management of the North
Dakota Housing Finance Agency and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Toruty Marls~

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
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